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Values

Respect

we respect the people we connect with

Compassion

we show compassion for the people 
we care for and work with

Commitment

we are committed to quality and 
excellence in everything we do

accountability 

we take accountability for what we do

Innovation

we drive innovation for better care

VIsIon

Together with our 
community we build 
healthier lives, inspired by 
world class standards

MIssIon

With our consumers at  
the forefront, we excel in  
delivering efficient 
integrated care, education 
and research to advance 
health and wellbeing for all
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capital WoRKs

Capital works continued to dominate the hospital 
site with the opening of new state-of-the-art wards 
in the new Baxter wing. It was a privilege to have 
representatives from the Baxter family present to 
officially open the new Baxter wing, which is named in 
honour of the percy Baxter Charitable trust, recognising 
the support and commitment the Baxter family have 
shown to Barwon Health since 1942. 

these capital works were capped off with the 
commissioning of the new helipad on the roof of the 
Baxter wing. In moving the helipad from its old site on the 
ground to the top of the Baxter wing patients will be able 
to get urgent medical treatment faster than ever before 
and in greater comfort and privacy.

looking to the future we are moving forward with 
developments in the north and south. Commencing 
July 2016 we will begin delivering a selection of elective 
surgery, renal and chemotherapy services from the 
epworth Geelong site in waurn ponds, bringing care to 
patients closer to home.

stRategic plan 2015-2020

Consumers at the forefront is a key driver of our new 
strategic plan for 2015-2020, which will guide us for 
the next five years. In coming years we will move from 
a position of providing consumer focussed care to 
consumer directed care. this is reflected in the role that 
consumers play throughout the organisation, embedded 
at so many levels to ensure that the service we deliver is 
truly world class and fit for purpose in meeting the needs 
and expectations of our community.

Inclusive practice is driving the organisation in many 
ways. the year has seen us focus on what we can do 
to ‘Close the Gap’ and improve health outcomes for 
Aboriginal and torres strait Islander people who come 
into contact with our health service. the result has seen 
us developing our first Reconciliation Action plan due for 
launch in July 2016. In addition to this important step we 
launched our ‘Be proud’ campaign with the organisation’s 
Gay, lesbian, Bisexual, transgender, Intersex and Queer 
(GlBtIQ) Inclusive practice and workplace Culture 
Committee holding their first ever event; a presentation 
on ‘From Blues to Rainbows’, which is an Australian study 
into the lives of gender diverse, transgender and intersex 
young Australians, with a focus on their mental health 
and wellbeing. this event proved a great success with 
over 70 attendees from across the organisation and the 
Geelong community. 

Year in review

dr John stekelenburg 
Chair

professor Belinda moyes 
Chief executive
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patients

At Barwon Health we care for patients from throughout 
south west victoria with our primary catchment area 
being the Greater Geelong Area.

this year we treated 67,505 people in our emergency 
Department, performed 21,739 operations and cared for 
193,018 patients through our outpatients program. our 
service provides care from the cradle to the grave; being 
the only public hospital within a 70km radius of Geelong. 
In the community we provided 52,011 episodes of dental 
care and supported 357 people in our Aged Care homes 
located in the north and south of Geelong.

ensuring the right care at the right time and at the 
right place has seen strong performance across 
the organisation with the big stand out being the 
performance of our elective surgery team. we achieved 
zero long waiters on the elective surgery waiting list, 
which has been at an all-time low.

staff and volunteeRs

Barwon Health is the biggest employer in Geelong 
and employs 6,676 people, equating to 1,858 eFt. the 
volunteer workforce continues to grow from strength 
to strength, supported by an extensive personal 
development program; the number of volunteers 
supporting us in providing the best of care to our 
community is in excess of 1,000. At Barwon Health the 
people who work for us are very much our community. 
we connect with and support them in many ways to 
ensure the best quality care possible.

Barwon Health staff continue to be engaged. Results 
from Best practice Australia have indicated that 
approximately 60 per cent of all staff completed the 
staff survey providing valuable data and feedback. 
this can be used to drive positive change throughout 
the organisation and ensure we maintain a working 
environment that reflects our values and supports all 
Barwon Health staff to achieve world class results.

ReseaRch and academia

2015-2016 has been an important year for academic 
activity at Barwon Health. the Health education and 
Research Building (HeRB) was formally commissioned, 
providing much needed space for researchers and 
educators. state-of-the-art education and training 
facilities including simulation laboratories are now 
available for staff. Different research groups are located 
in close proximity to each other to facilitate cross-
discipline innovations. the focus of the year has been 
on the development of quality collaborative care across 
the organisation.

the Geelong Centre for emerging Infectious Diseases 
(GCeID), located within HeRB, was also commissioned. 
this is a partnership between Deakin university, the 
CsIRo’s Australian Animal Health laboratory and Barwon 
Health, focusing on the concept of one-Health, which 
investigates the relationships between human and 
animal diseases, as well as its interactions with the larger 
environment. this venture is expected to contribute to 
Australia’s preparedness and responses on epidemics 
such as the severe Acute Respiratory syndrome (sARs) or 
the ebola virus Disease. 

the Barwon Health library opened its doors at the 
redesigned st Mary’s building in March 2016, providing a 
contemporary health library for Barwon Health clinicians 
and other staff, as well as a focal point for developing 
regional and consumer health information services. It is a 
critical component of bringing to life our strategic goals of 
partnering with and empowering consumers, improving 
health literacy within our community, and encouraging 
the professional development and research skills of early-
career staff.

Barwon Health’s Research strategy 2013-2015 was 
also completed, with all our objectives achieved, or 
significantly achieved. the next stage for Barwon Health 
is to develop a comprehensive Academic strategy for 
our organisation, which would be inclusive of clinical 
education and training, research and library services.

Regional leadeRship

the past twelve months has seen Barwon Health focus 
on developing strong links with partners across the 
Barwon south west region. 

we closed off the financial year by releasing information 
about the withdrawal of sugary drinks from our facilities. 
this release, which affirms our position of being a health 
promoting health service, was coordinated with health 
services across the region and represented the strength 
of the relationship between the thirteen health services 
in the Barwon south west region. 

Australia’s first ever leadership in Health volunteering 
Conference was staged by Barwon Health in partnership 
with Bendigo Health in late 2015. the conference, aimed 
at motivating volunteer leaders to strive for innovation 
and provide expert advice on how to build a successful 
volunteer strategy, was just one example of how Geelong 
is leading the way in volunteering.  the volunteers who 
devote their time to Barwon Health are essential to our 
service and are a wonderful support to many patients 
and their loved ones.
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community paRtneRships 

Relationships continue to grow, with northern Futures 
being an example of success. through our partnership we 
have implemented a traineeship/apprenticeship program 
at Barwon Health. this partnership is helping provide 
pathways into employment for the community in 
Geelong’s northern suburbs. the program allows trainees 
to complete a Cert III/Iv level traineeship whilst working 
in a full time role at Barwon Health to develop on-the-
job skills.

financial peRfoRmance

As the sole public health service in the Greater Geelong 
region we are committed to sustainability. we recognise 
that the cost of providing health care is constantly 
rising; we are responding to the increasing costs by 
developing innovative ways of caring for our community 
without compromising quality of care. Managing 
patient flow, access and discharge planning continues to 
present challenges.

this financial year, excluding capital and controlled 
entities results, Barwon Health recorded an operational 
deficit of $12.8 million.

whilst we strive to deliver a break-even result the 
increased demand on our service has had a direct impact 
on our end of year result.

ouR suppoRteRs

the first hospital on the university Hospital Geelong site 
was funded by the community over 160 years ago. the 
spirit of giving and community support continues to this 
day. not only do we receive support from individuals 
and community groups, we also have substantial 
contributions from organisations throughout our region.

the Cotton on Foundation is the standout in this 
area. over the years, through our partnership we have 
redeveloped the Children’s ward and more recently 
the special Care nursery. with this partner we are now 
focussing again on women’s and Children’s services by 
redeveloping the Maternity Day Assessment unit and 
post-natal ward.

A key focus of fundraising over this year has been 
#projectlove. the focus of this campaign is to raise funds 
for the redevelopment of the oncology pharmacy and 
the chemotherapy day ward located within the Andrew 
love Cancer Centre on the university Hospital site. 

In the 2015/16 Financial year the fundraising total 
reached $2.8 million.

Quality

Barwon Health continues to receive glowing 
endorsements for the quality of its care. the victorian 
Health experience survey shows that our consumer’s 
overall satisfaction rate is at 94%. this reflects the 
commitment by staff to provide a positive health 
experience for the community.

there has also been a redoubled effort to ensure safety 
forms a cornerstone of the care we provide. this year 
Barwon Health launched its “never events” program, 
looking at systematically understanding, and thus 
eliminating, harm that arises from system failures. 
this program aims to be a progressive evolution of 
the sentinel events program administered by the 
Department of Health and Human services, to promote a 
culture of safety first in health services.

Careful introduction of new technologies and procedures 
into Barwon Health to provide best care for our patients 
is important, and this year we have introduced both 
the transcatheter Aortic valve Implantation and Faecal 
Microbiota transplantation services into our arsenal of 
services. Both procedures have yielded positive results 
for our patients, and we look forward to continuing to 
provide innovative, world class care to our community.

acKnoWledgements

this year saw us farewell professor David Ashbridge as 
Ceo. we would like to thank him for his leadership over 
the past five and half years. His leadership saw some 
great achievements and one of the busiest capital 
growth periods in our history. It also saw us focus on 
innovation and governance, ensuring that we are well 
positioned for the future.

the second half of the financial year saw us led by 
Interim Chief executive paul Cohen, and the Board 
would like to recognise his leadership over this time and 
thank him for his commitment in ensuring the ongoing 
stability of the organisation. the new financial year will 
see new leadership with the appointment of professor 
Belinda Moyes.

lastly we would like to thank all our staff and volunteers 
for their commitment to ensuring our community has 
not only access to quality health care but health care that 
is consumer focussed and in tune with their needs.

professor Belinda moyes 
Chief executive

dr John stekelenburg 
Chair
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OPERAtIONS

Responsible Bodies Declaration

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, 
I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for 
Barwon Health for the year ending 30 June 2016.

dr John stekelenburg 
Board Chair 
Geelong 
10 August 2016
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manneR of estaBlishment and 
the Relevant ministeR

the annual report is prepared in accordance with 
Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance 
under the Financial Management Act 1994. the following 
disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for 
the reporting period.

ResponsiBle ministeRs

the hon. Jill hennessy mp
Minister for Health; Minister for Ambulance services

the hon. Jenny mikakos mp
Minister for Families and Children;  
Minister for youth Affairs

the hon. martin foley mp
Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing;  
Minister for Mental Health

oBJectives, functions, poWeRs 
and duties

Barwon Health is charged with delivering public health 
care to the Greater Geelong Region in accordance with 
the principles established as guidelines for the delivery 
of public health services in victoria, under section 17AA of 
the Health Services Act 1988 (the Act).

A new strategic plan (the plan) was launched in 2015 
that will take the organisation through to 2020. this 
plan has at its core a focus on the consumer; positioning 
the organisation to move from a position of ‘Consumer 
Focussed Care’ to one of ‘Consumer Directed Care’. the 
plan outlines three key enablers:

 › leadership / clinical and business leadership that has 
the ambition and capability to deliver on the vision

 › prosperity / Generating the capacity to deliver on the 
vision

 › using the power of our data and world knowledge 
as integrated information for care to deliver on the 
vision

the new plan is divided into five pillars:

our consumers at the forefront
 › Access to trusted health knowledge on demand

 › Confidence to sit at the forefront of one’s own health 
management

 › pathways of care, adapted to meet each person’s 
needs

 › lead the transition from consumer centred care to 
consumers at the forefront of care

our people at their best
 › living the values in every action and interaction

 › Harnessing our diversity, capabilities and integrating 
our efforts through high performing teams

 › well-informed and consulted when decisions are 
made

 › Capable of responding with resilience in an 
environment of rapid change

Right care, right time, right place
 › Quality and safety to the highest standard all day, 

everyday

 › putting consumers at the forefront of care delivery 
and service design

 › transforming the timing of services and care

 › with our partners develop a wider range of services 
closer to local communities

Research, education and training for excellence
 › excel in population and preventative health research

 › Generating and adopting leading health practices

 › training and education our people for excellence in 
care delivery, teaching and research

 › Be the leading partner for education and training 
providers and learners

our community’s wellbeing
 › prevention and wellness services tailored to 

individual and local community needs

 › pathways of care are focussed on health and 
wellbeing outcomes

 › understanding the health literacy profile of the 
community to address differences in access, self-
management and engagement

 › with our partners encourage healthier living during 
childhood
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natuRe and Range of seRvices

Formed in 1998 Barwon Health is one of victoria’s largest 
health services, providing care to more than 500,000 
people in the Barwon south west region across 21 sites.

Barwon Health is a major teaching facility with 
partnerships with Deakin university, the Gordon and 
numerous other tertiary education facilities from 
throughout Australia. 

we provide care at all stages of life and circumstance 
through our comprehensive range of services from 
emergency and acute medicine to mental health, primary 
care, community services aged care and sub-acute care 
and rehabilitation.

Care is provided to the community through:

 › Acute care at university Hospital Geelong and its 
associated services

 › sub-acute care for both inpatients and community 
rehabilitation through the McKellar Centre

 › Aged Care through the McKellar Centre at sites in 
north Geelong and Charlemont

 › A total of 16 community-based sites at key locations 
throughout the region

 › outreach clinics, home based services and 
telemedicine throughout the region

Our Bed Stock

number of Beds 2015/16 2014/15

Acute 448 426

transitional Care (off site) 20 20

transitional Care (on site) 19 19

Aged Residential Care 370 389

Mental Health Acute 32 32

Mental Health Rehabilitation & 
secure extended Care

13 15

prevention & Recovery (pARC) 6 6

sub-acute 104 108

total 1012 1015

Breakdown of  
aged care Beds 2015/16 2014/15

Blakiston lodge: Consists of 
two secure units of 45 aged 
mental health beds and 45 
dementia specific beds at the 
north Geelong Campus of the 
McKellar Centre

90 90

wallace lodge: high level care, 
located at the north Geelong 
Campus of the McKellar Centre

108 108

Alan David lodge: high level 
care located at the Charlemont 
Campus of the McKellar Centre

89 89

percy Baxter lodges: low 
level care beds located at the 
north Geelong Campus of the 
McKellar Centre

83 102
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of Barwon Health

BoaRd of diRectoRs

the Directors serving on the Board of Barwon Health 
during the 2015/16 reporting period:

chair / dr John stekelenburg
MBBs, MAICD

deputy chair / Barbara dennis 
MA, (nyu), B.App.sci (occupational therapy), GAICD

Jennifer cromarty Ba (public Relations) 
FpRIA

marcus dripps 
B physiotherapy, MAICD

dr david mackay 
BAgec(Hons) Mec(ne) GradDipComp phD (Deakin) FACs 
FAICD

marie thornton 
tptC (Geelong tC), FAICD

virginia todd 
eMpA, GAICD 

Robyn davis 
llB, BA, pGDip Asian law, pGDip Bahasa Indonesia (from 
January 2016)

dr sarah leach 
Rn, Bn(Hons), phD, MAICD ( to september 2015)

committees

Board of Directors and Finance Committee

chair
 › Dr John stekelenburg

members 
 › Jennifer Cromarty

 › Robyn Davis (from January 2016) 

 › Barbara Dennis

 › Marcus Dripps

 › David Mackay

 › Marie thornton

 › virginia todd 

 › sarah leach (to september 2015)

Audit and Risk Management Committee

chair
 › Marie thornton

members
 › Dr John stekelenburg

 › Jennifer Cromarty (observer)

 › Robyn Davis (from January 2016) 

 › Barbara Dennis

 › Marcus Dripps

 › David Mackay (observer)

 › virginia todd (observer)

 › sarah leach (to september 2015) 

Primary Care and Population Health

chair
 › Marcus Dripps 

members
 › Dr John stekelenburg (ex officio member)

 › David Mackay

 › Marie thornton

 › virginia todd 

Remuneration Committee

Chair

 › Barbara Dennis

Members

 › Dr John stekelenburg (ex officio member)

 › Jennifer Cromarty
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Community Advisory Committee

chair
 › Barbara Dennis

members
 › Dr John stekelenburg (ex officio member)

 › Robyn Davis (from January 2016) 

 › David Mackay

 › virginia todd

Quality and Clinical Governance Committee

chair
 › sarah leach (to september 2015) 

chair
 › Dr John stekelenburg/ ex officio member

members
 › Jennifer Cromarty

 › Robyn Davis (observer from January 2016)

 › Barbara Dennis

 › Marcus Dripps

 › David Mackay (observer)

 › Marie thornton 

 › virginia todd (observer)

executive team

chief executive officer  
July 2015 to December 2015 
professor David Ashbridge / MBBs, M.public Health, Dip. 
Child Health, Dip. tropical Medicine, GAICD, Member of the 
Royal Australian College of General practitioners

interim chief executive  
December 2015 to June 2016

paul Cohen BA / (pol&Gov) Hons

interim deputy chief executive officer  
December 2015 to June 2016
Robyn Hayles MpH, BAppsc(nursing)

deputy chief executive officer /  
chief operating officer acute services  
July 2015 to December 2015 
paul Cohen / BA (pol&Gov) Hons

chief medical officer 
Associate professor Alastair Mah / MBBs, BMedsci, MHsM, 
MBA, FRACMA, FCHsM, FHKCHse, GAICD

chief nursing and midwifery officer
Adjunct professor lucy Cuddihy / Dn, Rn, RM, BAppsc 
(Adv nurs), MBA

interim chief operating officer acute services 
December 2015 to June 2016
peter watson

executive director surgery and perioperative 
programme
peter watson

chief operating officer community health, 
Rehabilitation, palliative and aged care, mental health, 
drugs & alcohol services
Robyn Hayles MpH, BAppsc(nursing)

chief financial officer 
nicole peck CpA, GAICD  
July 2015 to December 2015

Ian sargent BBus(Accounting), MAppFin, CpA December 
2015 to June 2016

chief of Knowledge, information and Regions
Ann larkins MBt, CCRn, Honorary Fellow Deakin 
university – Centre for pattern Recognition and Data 
Analytics (pRaDA)  
July 2015

tom Conway  
July 2015 to February 2016 

chief information officer
sharon Hakkennes Bphysio, GradCerteBp, Dphysio, CHIA  
February 2016 to June 2016

chief of Workforce and culture
perry Muncaster
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structure as at 30 June 2016

BaRWon health BoaRd of diRectoRs

Interim Chief executive officer
Paul Cohen

acute seRvices
Interim Chief operating officer

Peter Watson

chief of nuRsing, midWifeRy & Regions
Lucy Cuddihy

chief medical officeR
Alastair Mah

chief of KnoWledge & infoRmation
Sharon Hakkenes

inteRim chief financial officeR
Colin Holland

chief of WoRKfoRce & cultuRe
Perry Muncaster

community health & RehaBilitation seRvices, 
aged caRe seRvices & mental health, dRugs 

and alcohol seRvices
Chief operating officer and Interim Deputy Chief executive

Robyn Hayles

executive officer
Jacqui Barry/Lisa Fox

communications 
& maRKeting 

Director
Kate Bibby

BaRWon health foundation 
executive Director

Jill Moodie
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WoRKfoRce infoRmation

hospitals 
Labour Category

June 
Current Month FtE*

June 
YtD FtE**

2015 2016 2015 2016

nursing 1827.18 1858.72 1809.13 1858.46

Administration and Clerical 710.09 716.17 689.14 720.05

Medical support 432.22 425.37 424.45 432.98

Hotel and Allied services 526.33 482.81 543.33 496.57

Medical officers 66.10 70.90 65.02 71.04

Hospital Medical officers 326.40 356.94 321.72 339.08

sessional Clinicians 90.96 91.06 89.54 91.64

Ancillary staff (Allied Health) 310.82 310.81 312.87 313.77

the Fte figures required in the table above are those 
excluding overtime. these do not include contracted 
staff (e.g. Agency nurses, Fee-for-service visiting Medical 
officers) who are not regarded as employees for this 
purpose. the above data should be consistent with the 
information provided in the Minimum employee Data set.

*June current month ftes are calculated as follows:
Ftes are calculated for each employee per pay period 
as follows:

For a full time employee:

Actual paid Hours / employee’s Base Hours = Full time 
Fte

For a part time or a casual employee: 

Actual paid Hours / employee’s standard Award Hours = 
part time & Casual Fte

June Current Month FTE for an employee 

= the aggregation of all individual Ftes for all pays ending 
during June divided by the number of pays in the month.

June Current Month FTE for an agency 

= the sum of all the current month Ftes for all its 
employees during the month.

**ytd fte 
= the average Fte for the year, i.e. the sum of the 
monthly current months’ Ftes divided by 12.

employment and  
conduct pRinciples

public sector values and employment principles have 
been incorporated into Barwon Health’s leadership and 
employee orientation programs. the employment 
principles have also been incorporated into our 
recruitment and selection training programs to ensure 
that all employment decisions are based on merit and 
equity. Barwon Health is an equal opportunity employer.
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RepoRt fRom the chief financial officeR

Barwon Health recorded an operating deficit for the 
year of $12.8 million (2015: $1.3 million surplus), with total 
operating revenues of $614.7 million. the net result after 
depreciation and other capital items was a deficit of 
$22 million compared to a surplus of $8.9 million in the 
prior year.

whilst we strive to deliver a break even result the 
increased demand on our service has had a direct impact 
on our end of year result.

the Capital works program has seen a number of major 
projects come to fruition with the opening of the Geelong 
Centre for emerging Infectious Diseases (GCeID), the 
Baxter tower Helipad, st Mary’s Hall, and major upgrades 
within the Baxter wing.

In the coming year we will see further planning for 
the development of Barwon Health north which will 
significantly address the future access demands for 
health services in Geelong. In addition to this, significant 
investment will be made in consolidating and improving 
Renal Dialysis and Day of surgery Admission (DosA) 
services.

these upcoming capital projects will continue to build our 
capacity to provide improved service and support to our 
community as we work together to build healthier lives.

summaRy of financial Results foR five yeaRs

2016 
$000

2015  
$000

2014 
$000

2013 
$000

2012 
$000

total Revenue 658,235 641,798 615,730 567,259 531,816

total expenses 680,258 632,879 599,128 564,546 541,514

net Result for the year (inc. Capital and specific 
Items)

-22,023 8,919 16,602 2,713 -9,698

Retained surplus (Accumulated Deficit) 10,553 42,121 8,538 -12,632 -15,978

total Assets 714,141 707,404 681,899 594,760 581,950

total liabilities 173,926 147,900 142,685 135,292 126,940

net Assets 540,215 559,504 539,214 459,468 455,010

total equity 540,215 559,504 539,214 459,468 455,010

suBseQuent events

Refer to note 31 events occurring after the Balance sheet Date.

disclosuRe of ex-gRatia payments

2015/2016 
$000

2014/2015 
$000

2013/2014 
$000

2012/2013 
$000

2011/2012 
$000

Barwon Health made the following ex-gratia 
payments to employees

64.17 9.52 0 0 0
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details of consultancies 
(undeR $10,000)

In 2015/2016, there were 47 consultancies where the total 
fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000. 
the total expenditure incurred during 2015/2016 in 
relation to these consultancies is $124,446 (excl Gst).

details of consultancies  
(valued at $10,000 oR gReateR)

In 2015/2016, there were 8 consultancies where the 
total fees payable to the consultants were $10,000 or 
greater. the total expenditure incurred during 2015/2016 
in relation to these consultancies is $784,325 (excl Gst). 
Details of individual consultancies can be viewed upon 
request and subject to the Freedom of Information Act 
1982. the following table details these consultancies.

consultant
purpose of 
consultancy start date end date

total approved 
project fee

expenditure 
2015/16

future 
expenditure

ernst & young sustained Aged 
Care Funding and 
performance 
Improvement

3/02/2016 28/03/2016  214,500  214,500 0

Applied Aged 
Care solutions

Aged Care Funding 
Review services 
project

2/09/2015 2/06/2016  166,545  166,545 0

Deakin 
university

employment of 
post-Doctorate 
candidate 
consultant

1/07/2015 30/06/2016  110,000  110,000 0

Jo Fisher 
executive

executive search 
services for the 
position of Chief 
executive officer 
and Chief Financial 
officer

17/12/2015 11/05/2016  106,960  106,960 0

Aspex 
Consulting

Financial and 
workforce analysis 
& west victoria 
cardiac surgery 
review

8/01/2016 16/05/2016  66,340  66,340 0

Deloitte 
private

professional 
service and 
performance 
Improvement

31/07/2016 2/09/2016  54,400  54,400 0

the Cultural 
Consultancy 
Group

Development 
of reconciliation 
action plan

10/09/2016 18/05/2016  37,500  37,500 0

JH Resources 
pty ltd

post 
implementation 
review of the 
Access evaluation 
project for Mental 
Health and Drug & 
Alcohol services

14/07/2015 8/09/2016  28,080  28,080 0
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adveRtising disclosuRe

In 2015/2016, advertising expenditure did not exceed 
$100,000 per campaign.

infoRmation and communication technology (ict) disclosuRe

the total ICt expenditure incurred during 2015/2016 is $17,344,437 (excluding Gst) with the details shown below.

($million)

Business as usual (Bau) 
ict expenditure

non- Business as usual (non-Bau) ict 
expenditure

operational expenditure 
(excluding gst)

capital expenditure 
(excluding gst)

$15,277,846 $2,116,591 $15,691,701 $1,652,736

caR paRKing fees

Barwon Health complies with the DHHs hospital circular 
on car parking fees effective 1 February 2016 and details 
of car parking fees and concession benefits can be viewed 
via the website: www.barwonhealth.org.au
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and attestations

occupational health and safety

Barwon Health complies with the occupational Health 
and safety Act (oH&s). programs are in place to 
address and support the effect the ageing workforce 
has on oH&s and the prevention and management of 
psychological injuries.

All staff are supported by an in-house Gp Clinic; staffCare. 
the staffCare team ensure that all staff have relevant 
vaccinations and drive numerous wellness campaigns.

compliance With the Building act 1993

Barwon Health fully complies with the building and 
maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993.

Actions that ensure that Barwon Health complies are:

 › the use of qualified engineers, registered building 
consultants, building surveyors, architects and 
qualified trades personnel. 

 › All works and testing is verified during and at the 
completion using a Certificate of occupancy for new 
works and supplier sign off for all essential safety 
measure testing.

 › Barwon Health undergoes regular internal and 
external audits regarding fire, risk assessments and 
safety compliance to ensure ongoing adherence to 
the Building and safety Codes.

fReedom of infoRmation

the victorian Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides members of the public the right to apply for access to 
information held by Barwon Health.

Requests for records relating to medical records form the majority of requests. In accordance with the Barwon Health 
privacy policy, all care is taken to ensure information is released only to the individual to whom it pertains or to a 
recognised representative. 964 requests were received in the 2015/2016 Financial year.

2015/2016 
$000

2014/2015 
$000

2013/2014 
$000

2012/2013 
$000

2011/2012 
$000

number of requests 964 983 1,034 975 275

fRd 25a vipp disclosuRe – contRacts

Barwon Health abides by the victorian participation 
policy Act 2003. In 2015/2016 there were no contracts 
that required disclosure under the victorian 
participation policy.

application and opeRation of 
pRotected disclosuRe act 2012

Barwon Health has in place appropriate procedures for 
disclosures in accordance with the protected Disclosure 
Act 2012. no protected disclosures were made under the 
Act in 2015/2016.

In accordance with the protected Disclosure Act 2012 
there were no matters referred to the Independent 
Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC).

application and opeRation of 
the caReRs Recognition act 2012 
(caReRs act)

the Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes 
and values the role of people in care relationships. Barwon 
Health understands the different needs of persons in care 
relationships and that care relationships bring benefits 
to the consumer, their supporters and the community. 
Barwon Health takes all practicable measures to ensure 
that its employees, agents and carers have an awareness 
and understanding of care relationship principles and this 
is reflected in our commitment to a model of care that 
is consumer centred. It is also reflected in the important 
role consumers play in the day-by-day operations of our 
organisation and with consumers at the forefront being a 
key pillar of our 2015/2020 strategic plan.
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competitive neutRality

As a publicly owned entity Barwon Health is obligated 
to compete fairly and equitably. Barwon Health is 
committed to transparent behaviour in this regard and 
complies with government policies regarding competitive 
neutrality with regard to all significant business activities.

enviRonmental peRfoRmance

Barwon Health are innovators and leaders when it 
comes to our commitment to sustainability and 
reducing our carbon footprint. we were the first health 
service in victoria to install a Closed loop Composting 
system at our McKellar Centre Food services Central 
production unit. 

Barwon Health staff are encouraged to participate 
in the extensive recycling program on offer. A waste 
management handbook is available to assist in 
identifying options to reduce, reuse and recycle.

additional infoRmation  
availaBle upon ReQuest

Consistent with FRD 22G (section 6.19) details in respect 
of the items listed below have been retained by Barwon 
Health and are available to the relevant Ministers, 
Members of parliament and the public on request 
(subject to the freedom of information requirements, if 
applicable):

a) Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly 
completed by all relevant officers;

b) Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee 
or held beneficially;

c) Details of publications produced by the entity about 
itself, and how these can be obtained;

d) Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and 
levies charged by the Health service;

e) Details of any major external reviews carried out on 
the Health service;

f) Details of major research and development activities 
undertaken by the Health service that are not 
otherwise covered either in the Report of operations 
or in a document that contains the financial 
statements and Report of operations;

g) Details of overseas visits undertaken including 
a summary of the objectives and outcomes of 
each visit;

h) Details of major promotional, public relations and 
marketing activities undertaken by the Health 
service to develop community awareness of the 
Health service and its services;

i) Details of assessments and measures undertaken 
to improve the occupational health and safety 
of employees;

j) General statement on industrial relations within 
the Health service and details of time lost through 
industrial accidents and disputes, which is not 
otherwise detailed in the Report of operations; 

k) A list of major committees sponsored by the Health 
service, the purposes of each committee and the 
extent to which those purposes have been achieved;

l) Details of all consultancies and contractors including 
consultants/contractors engaged, services provided, 
and expenditure committed for each engagement.

pRivacy

Barwon Health is committed to protecting the privacy of 
patient and staff information. we are required by law to 
protect personal information and comply with the Health 
Records Act 2001 (HRA) and other relevant legislation 
relating to confidentiality and privacy.

nominated pRivacy officeR

Michelle Martella



RepoRt of opeRations

17

occupational violence

occupational violence statistics 2015-16

workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 Fte 0.074

number of accepted workcover claims with lost time injury with an occupational violence cause per 
1,000,000 hours worked.

6.53

number of occupational violence incidents reported 516

number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 Fte 12.8

percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition 0.58%

definitions
For the purposes of the above statistics the following 
definitions apply.

 › occupational violence – any incident where an 
employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in 
circumstances arising out of, or in the course of 
their employment.

 › incident – occupational health and safety incidents 
reported in the health service incident reporting 
system. Code Grey reporting is not included.

 › accepted Workcover claims – Accepted workcover 
claims that were lodged in 2015-16.

 › lost time – is defined as greater than one day.

compliance With datavic access policy

Barwon Health complies with the Datavic Access 
policy issued by the victorian Government in 2012. 
All data included in the Annual Report goes to the 
Department of Health and Human services to publish, 
which is made online at www.datavic.gov.au in machine 
readable format.

attestation on data integRity 

I, professor Belinda Moyes, certify that Barwon Health 
has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that reported data reasonably 
reflects actual performance. Barwon Health has critically 
reviewed these controls and processes throughout 
the year.

accountable officer: professor Belinda moyes 
Chief executive officer 
Barwon Health  
10 August 2016

attestation foR compliance With 
the ministeRial standing diRection 
4.5.5 – RisK management fRameWoRK 
and pRocesses

I, professor Belinda Moyes, certify that Barwon Health 
has complied with the Ministerial standing Direction 
4.5.5. – Risk Management Framework and processes. the 
Barwon Health Audit Committee verifies this.

accountable officer: professor Belinda moyes 
Chief executive officer 
Barwon Health  
10 August 2016

attestation foR compliance With 
austRalian/neW Zealand RisK 
management standaRds

I, professor Belinda Moyes, certify that Barwon Health 
has risk management processes in place consistent with 
the Australian/new Zealand Risk Management standard 
Iso 31000:2009 and an internal control system is in place 
that enables the executives to understand, manage 
and satisfactorily control risk exposures. the Audit 
Committee verifies this assurance and that the risk profile 
of Barwon Health has been critically reviewed within the 
last 12 months.

accountable officer: professor Belinda moyes 
Chief executive officer 
Barwon Health  
10 August 2016



KEY FINANCIAL 
AND SERVICE 

PERFORMANCE 
REPORtING



Key Financial and Service PerForm
ance rePorting

19statement of Priorities

the statement of priorities (sop) is Barwon Health’s key accountability agreement with the Minister for Health and the 
Minister for Ageing. It sets out the key financial, access and service performance priorities and agreed targets. 

statement of pRioRities paRt a

domain action deliverables outcome

patient 
experience 
and 
outcomes

Drive improved health 
outcomes through a strong 
focus on patient-centred care 
in the planning, delivery and 
evaluation of services, and the 
development of new models for 
putting patients first.  

Completed year one of the 2015-
2020 strategic priority pillar Our 
consumers at the forefront and 
its related objectives.

In progress.

Health literacy strategy key 
area of focus for remainder of 
the year.

A new guide to Consumer 
Health Information has been 
published on the library 
website. this contains 
reputable and trusted 
sources for consumers to 
find health information and 
evaluation guides. 

A training session for wIse 
volunteers and consumer 
representatives was conducted 
by the Reference librarian 
with the volunteers manager. 
the aim was to develop skills 
in searching for evidence-
based information and critical 
appraisal. 

ensure that care, services and 
facilities provided by Barwon 
Health are planned, delivered 
and evaluated in collaboration 
with consumers, carers and 
the community in accordance 
with the Consumer and person 
centred care policy.

Achieved. Continues to 
implemented.

strengthen the response 
of health services to family 
violence. this includes 
implementing interventions, 
processes and systems to 
prevent; identify and respond 
appropriately to family violence 
at an individual and community 
level.

ensure the Hospital 
Admission Risk Program 
via a multidisciplinary team 
operates to identify people with 
complex psychosocial needs (eg 
domestic/family violence).

Achieved. screening practices 
are in place.

workgroup formed to develop 
a Barwon Health strategic 
approach to prevention and 
response to family violence.

vulnerable Children’s working 
Group established. 
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domain action deliverables outcome

Identify, assess and manage all 
patients, residents or clients in 
consultation with employees 
and document in medical 
records and nursing Care plans. 

workgroup formed to develop 
a Barwon Health strategic 
approach to prevention and 
response to family violence. 
learnings from Bendigo Health 
are being reviewed currently.

use consumer feedback 
and develop participation 
processes to improve person 
and family centred care, health 
service practice and patient 
experiences.

Real time consumer feedback 
across programs.

Achieved. Annual volunteer 
survey completed. 

vHes qualitative feedback 
is recorded in the feedback 
management system.

Board walkaround data 
is recorded in feedback 
management system.

point of care feedback formally 
recorded in system.

Implemented Feedback 
Management system (C.Gov 
online) across the organisation.

Implement objectives from 
the Consumer and Community 
Participation Framework.

In progress. Has not been 
released by the Department of 
Health and Human services at 
this time.

Include community feedback in 
Quality Improvement and Risk 
Management reports.

Achieved. Aggregated analysis 
of consumer feedback forms 
the prioritisation of Quality 
Improvement activities.

establish foundation systems 
for customer service including 
consumer orientation to care/
service processes and better 
develop our understanding of 
what matters to consumers. 

In progress. ‘About me’ pilot 
currently being evaluated.

Achieved. empower leadership 
program supports staff 
education in this area.

Increase staff engagement 
in customer service and 
consumer-driven improvement 
in care (for example via the 
people Matter survey).

Achieved. to be undertaken in 
the final quarter. 
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domain action deliverables outcome

Include the consumer 
experience in all clinical 
training programs. 

Achieved. Consumer stories 
are being incorporated 
into clinical education and 
training programs.

literature review underway 
to explore ways to reflect 
the consumer experience 
and expectations. 

Increasing engagement 
of consumers with ‘lived 
experience’ as guest presenters 
in short courses. 

Curriculum reviews incorporate 
consumers as part of the review 
process.

Identify service users who are 
marginalised or vulnerable 
to poor health, and develop 
interventions that improve 
their outcomes relative to other 
groups, for example, women, 
Aboriginal people, people 
affected by mental illness, 
people at risk of elder abuse, 
people with disability, homeless 
people, refugees and asylum 
seekers, people whose alcohol 
and other drug use is damaging 
their health or impacting on 
their recovery.

ensure mental health services 
are delivered in a way that 
supports the recovery of 
the consumer in accordance 
with the Assessment, care 
and evaluation manual (ACD 
Guidelines). 

Achieved. Catchment based 
intake in place and monitored 
internally via reporting 
structure and externally via 
consortium group.

Care and coordination provided 
in line with program Guidelines.

support the effective delivery 
of alcohol and other drug 
treatment services.

Implement the Drugs and 
Alcohol Service Policy for 
assessment, consultation, 
targeted intervention, group 
programs and outreach 
support initiatives. 

Achieved. Intake is catchment 
based and monitored internally 
via management and externally 
via consortium. Care and 
coordination is provided and 
monitored. program guidelines 
are met.

Improve the health outcomes 
of Aboriginal and torres 
strait Islanders by increasing 
accessibility and cultural 
responsiveness of the victorian 
health system.

ensure that Aboriginal and 
torres strait islander people 
receive a culturally appropriate 
assessment, care and service 
delivery via the Culturally 
appropriate care to Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander 
Community Procedure. 

Achieved. Aboriginal Advisory 
Gathering continues to meet.

welcome to Country at all 
sites. Artwork at a number of 
sites. Aboriginal employment 
plan implemented.

staff education competency 
tool created and in use.
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domain action deliverables outcome

Complete priorities for the 
Aboriginal Reconciliation Action 
Plan 2015/16.

progressing well. Barwon Health 
Reconciliation Action plan (RAp) 
established and implemented.

RAp action plans in all 
directorates. 

Implement an organisation-
wide approach to advance care 
planning including a system for 
identifying, documenting and/
or receiving advance care plans 
in partnership with patients, 
carers and substitute decision 
makers so that people's wishes 
for future care can be activated 
when medical decisions need to 
be made.

uphold the Advance Care 
Planning Policy and Procedure 
and update from relevant 
‘RiskMan’ reports and the 
‘Adherence to wishes’ 
death audit.

Achieved.

progress monitored via end of 
life steering Committee.

Develop an organisational 
policy for the provision of safe, 
high quality end of life care in 
acute and subacute settings, 
with clear guidance about the 
role of, and access to, specialist 
palliative care.

Implement the first year of 
Barwon Health’s End of Life 
Care Strategy initiatives and 
related policies.

In progress.

Business case developed.

proposed measurement matrix 
and gap analysis complete.

education and training for staff 
under review.

Ivalidate and My values in place.

Introduce and complete 
Advance Care planning within 
the Community palliative 
Care program.

In progress. Clinic scoped.

Demonstrate an organisational 
commitment to quality cancer 
services through engagement 
with the local Integrated Cancer 
service and implementation of 
the optimal Care pathways. 

Continue to convene and Chair 
the Barwon south western 
Regional Integrated Cancer 
services (BswRICs) Governance 
Group for regional services, 
care coordination, supportive 
and multidisciplinary care and 
quality monitoring.

Achieved and ongoing.
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domain action deliverables outcome

Governance, 
leadership 
and culture

Demonstrate an organisational 
commitment to occupational 
Health and safety, including 
mental health and wellbeing 
in the workplace. ensure 
accessible and affordable 
support services are available 
for employees experiencing 
mental ill health. work 
collaboratively with the 
Department of Health 
and Human services and 
professional bodies to identify 
and address systemic issues of 
mental ill health amongst the 
medical professions.

Implement year one of 
the Barwon Health 2015-
2020 Workforce Plan and 
recommendations of the 
Cultural survey.

Achieved and ongoing. Cultural 
survey Action plans created and 
implementation underway.

plans monitored via 
governance structures.

Return to work and staff Care in 
place and accessible to all staff.

uphold the principles of the 
Employee Health and Wellbeing 
Policy, which reflects the 
key principles outlined in the 
government’s ‘victorian Healthy 
workplaces Framework’ and 
the ‘Healthy together victoria 
Achievement program’ for 
workplaces.

Achieved - Healthy workplace.

Monitor and publically report 
incidents of occupational 
violence. work collaboratively 
with the Department of 
Health and Human services 
to develop systems to 
prevent the occurrence of 
occupational violence.

Actively endorse a workplace 
that is free of violence and 
aggression by the promotion 
of preventative training, 
education, support, reporting 
and effective management of 
all incidents.

Achieved. values and 
associated behaviours are in 
place and endorsed throughout 
the organisation.

no tolerance to bulling 
and violence is in place and 
reinforced.

promote a positive workplace 
culture and implement 
strategies to prevent bullying 
and harassment in the 
workplace. Monitor trends of 
complaints of bullying and 
harassment and identify and 
address organisational units 
exhibiting poor workplace 
culture and morale.

Have employees receive and 
abide by the 2015 revised 
Employee Code of Conduct. 

Achieved.

Manage complaints of 
unsatisfactory performance and 
misconduct in accordance with 
organisational guidelines and the 
Acceptable behaviours policy. 

Achieved and ongoing. Actively 
monitored and managed. 
Managers provided with 
education.
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domain action deliverables outcome

Improve data reporting systems 
to increase accountability 
and transparency, consistent 
with the transparency in 
Government Bill.

ensure the Information and 
Data Governance Committee 
supports the provision of 
excellent data stewardship, 
integrity and information 
management across the 
organisation. 

In progress.

undertake an annual board 
assessment to identify and 
develop board capability to 
ensure all board members are 
well equipped to effectively 
discharge their responsibilities. 

Complete an annual Board 
assessment to improve 
performance and governance. 

Achieved and scheduled on 
annual workplan. 

In addition all Board Committee 
Chairs will complete an 
annual performance review 
of their committee, for 
Board consideration. 

Achieved and scheduled on 
Board annual workplan. 

Contribute to the development 
and implementation of the 
10 year Mental Health plan for 
victoria and State of Victoria's 
Mental Health Services Annual 
Report.

Implement the Mental 
Health Outcome Measure 
Performance Guideline.

Achieved. Relevant data 
collected and reported 
monthly via Quality and safety 
structures. All active consumers 
are reviewed within guidelines.

embed the principles of the 
Mental Health Act 2014 (Vic) into 
all levels of service and system 
design and delivery.

Apply the principles of the 
Mental Health Act 2014 (Vic) via 
the clinical guidelines, policies 
and procedures developed by 
Barwon Health for recovery and 
supported decision making, 
compulsory treatment and 
for improved oversight and 
service treatment.

In progress. Current practices 
align with the principles of the 
Act. the new restructure will 
further enhance the consumer 
engagement and strengthen a 
recovery focus.

Apply existing capability 
frameworks and clinical 
guidelines to inform service 
system planning, giving 
consideration to the capability 
of neighbouring services and 
how best to allocate available 
resources so as to deliver the 
maximum benefit to the local 
community.

Deliver a community paediatric 
service model.

Achieved.

Implement strategies to 
support health service workers 
to respond to the needs of 
people affected by ice.

support and promote staff 
wellness services for staff.

Achieved and ongoing. 
supervision is provided in 
program areas. staff support is 
available and offered frequently 
on a needs basis.
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domain action deliverables outcome

Build workforce capability and 
sustainability by supporting 
formal and informal clinical 
education and training for 
staff and health students, in 
particular inter-professional 
learning.

Increase career and training 
pathways for clinical and non-
clinical workforce groups.

Achieved and ongoing. 
training pathways have been 
implemented for northern 
Futures and for Cert II and Cert 
Iv programs.

established oral surgery 
Registrar program.

Build inter-professional and 
multidisciplinary training 
using a range of mechanisms 
to ensure excellence in 
clinical practice.

Achieved and ongoing. 
Interprofessional education 
(Ipe). International consultation, 
visiting academics and 
workshops in interprofessional 
education concluded to 
develop curriculum. 

Collaboration with Deakin 
university and victoria 
university to build capacity 
in Ipe.

Barwon Health Ipe pilot 
program scheduled for April. 

Clinical training needs 
training survey with over 500 
responses, analysis underway.  

Director and Deputy Director 
simulation appointed with 
focus on undergraduate 
students. 

support excellence in clinical 
training through productive 
engagement in clinical training 
networks and developing health 
education partnerships across 
the continuum of learning.

Build capacity for clinical 
placements and seek 
opportunities for clinical 
placement innovation including 
opportunities to maximise 
existing relationships with 
tertiary education and research 
institutions. 

Achieved and ongoing. 
new community and 
regional sites negotiated for 
clinical placement.

partnering with tan tock seng 
Hospital (singapore). 

Adopt the Healthy Choices: 
Food and Drink Guidelines for 
victorian public hospitals, to 
increase the availability of 
healthy food and drinks for 
purchase by staff, visitors and 
the general public.

ensure the availability and 
active promotion of healthy and 
nutritious foods in accordance 
with the Healthy Choices: 
Food and Drink Guidelines for 
victorian public hospitals.

Achieved. 

plan to remove sugary 
drinks announced.

safety and 
quality

ensure management plans are 
in place to prevent, detect and 
contain Carbapenem Resistant 
enterobacteriaceae as outlined 
in Hospital Circular 02/15 (issued 
16 June 2015).

Implement the Multiple-
Antibiotic Resistant Organisms 
procedure to effectively 
manage CRe and to reduce 
the risk of transmission of 
microorganisms to patients, 
staff or visitors.

Achieved and ongoing.

screening tool for all admissions 
and transfers 

new CRe procedure for Barwon 
Health and laboratory.
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domain action deliverables outcome

Implement effective 
antimicrobial stewardship 
practices and increase 
awareness of antimicrobial 
resistance, its implications and 
actions to combat it, through 
effective communication, 
education, and training.

Compliance with the Restricted 
Antimicrobial Prescribing 
procedure through governance, 
communication, education 
and training.

Achieved and ongoing. 
Comprehensive program 
in place in Acute and 
subacute areas.

Antimicrobial restriction/ 
approval, antimicrobial ward 
rounds/decision support 
and audit tool with >80% 
compliance.

ensure that emergency 
response management plans 
are in place, regularly exercised 
and updated, including trigger 
activation and communication 
arrangements. 

proactively maximise the 
efficiency and effectiveness 
of critical business and 
clinical functions in the event 
of a major incident, while 
maintaining the highest level 
of safety for consumers, 
employees and others.

Achieved.

Develop perinatal mortality 
and morbidity review processes 
in alignment with the Clinical 
practice Guideline for perinatal 
Mortality.

Review that the meetings 
and processes of the Perinatal 
Morbidity & Mortality 
Committee are aligned with the 
Clinical practise Guideline for 
perinatal Mortality.

Achieved.

provide information and 
support about prevention, risk 
factors and early detection and 
management of diseases by 
employing a prevention and 
detection approach similar to 
the 'Supporting patients to be 
smoke free: an ABCD approach 
in Victorian health services' 
model.

tailor prevention and wellness 
services to individual and local 
community needs.

Achieved and ongoing.

Financial 
sustainability

Improve cash management 
processes to ensure that 
financial obligations are met as 
they are due.

Accurate cash management 
forecast and payments to 
supplier’s made on time.

Achieved and ongoing. Cash 
forecasting processes put 
in place including regular 
reconciliations between 
forecast and actual position 
to enable follow up and 
remedial actions.

Accounts payable has been 
given additional focus and 
resources during 2015/16 to 
help ensure timely supplier 
payments.

Identify opportunities for 
efficiency and better value 
service delivery.

Complete commercial review 
in corporate service and 
clinical areas.

In progress. Financial 
Improvement plans in place 
and enacted across the 
organisation.
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domain action deliverables outcome

work with Health purchasing 
victoria to implement 
procurement savings initiatives. 

ensure that probity and 
procurement activity is 
efficiently and consistently 
managed across Barwon Health 
in accordance with Health 
purchasing victoria’s policies.

In progress. on track with 
Health purchasing victoria 
reform initiative including 
policy development.

Rollout of new policies (and 
processes) will provide an 
opportunity for greater 
efficiencies and consistency 
across the organisation.

Invest in revenue optimisation 
initiatives to ensure 
maximisation of revenue from 
both public and private sources. 

Internal reviews completed on 
billing practises to any high risk 
areas identified.

In progress. Reviews well 
underway on outpatient (MBs) 
Billing opportunities, private 
elective co-payment and 
expanding the ‘Barwon private’ 
model to General surgery.

external consultant engaged 
and review well advanced into 
optimising Aged Care Funding 
Instrument (ACFI) funding.

undertake cost benchmarking 
and develop partnerships with 
peers to improve operating 
efficiency.

Investigate the efficiency of 
Barwon Health compared 
with similar service providers, 
and request plans for 
improvements to be submitted 
where appropriate.

In progress. external review 
undertaken of BH’s cost base 
and Fte growth. this included 
an assessment of the relative 
cost of Barwon Health’s 
corporate services which 
provided a catalyst for some 
efficiency measures being 
taken.

Develop collaboration with 
peers to selectively provide 
services that represent the best 
value of money whilst in the 
best interests of patients.

provide accessible, high quality 
health services to our Barwon 
south western (Bsw) Region 
via Regional programs and 
collaboration via the Bsw Ceo 
Council.

Achieved and ongoing. 
Ceo forums and 
collaboration continues.

Barwon Health remains an 
active participant in the Barwon 
south west Council.

Access Implement integrated care 
approaches across health and 
community support services to 
improve access and responses 
for disadvantaged victorians.

Develop plans to improve access 
to car parking for patients and 
their support people.

In progress. tarmac on old 
helipad site to increase capacity 
at university Hospital Geelong 
by approx 100 car parks. 

progress partnerships with 
other health services to ensure 
patients can access treatments 
as close to where they live when 
it is safe and effective to so, 
making the most efficient use 
of available resources across the 
system.

Develop a framework for 
Barwon@Home.

In progress.

Required review due to impact 
of health reform and financial 
situation.

Implement surgical program 
with the epworth.

Achieved.
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domain action deliverables outcome

Heart Institute implemented 
with st John of God.

In progress. third cardiothoracic 
surgeon appointed.

Relationship with Ballarat 
Health service established.

pathways agreed.

optimise system capacity 
by ensuring that allocated 
points of care are implemented 
as per the travis review 
recommendations.

Fulfil obligations of the strategic 
pillar Right Care, Right Time, 
Right Place via the RespeCt 
and Matrix frameworks to 
ensure safe, effective person-
centred care that is clinically 
appropriate, inclusive of access 
and flow.

Achieved and ongoing. 
weekly R3 monitoring 
meeting continues.

physical bed capacity increased 
in March with plans to open a 
further 24 bed ward in May.

optimise alternatives to 
hospital admission.

Monitor changes to patient 
access and flow to identify 
process improvements 
to access Hospital in the 
Home (HItH) and post Acute 
Care programs.

Achieved. All programs 
meeting targets.

Chemo HItH pilot complete 
and sustainable program 
implemented.

ensure that policies, procedures 
and service models are in 
place to manage and monitor 
colonoscopy referrals and 
ensure timely access for 
patients with an urgent clinical 
need.

Implement the colonoscopy 
prioritisation procedure and the 
online colonoscopy urgency 
categorisation decision support 
tool and include in the surgical 
orientation program.

In progress.

Contribute to the provision of 
additional dental services to 
achieve the targets, milestones 
and objectives of the national 
partnership on Adult public 
Dental services.

Deliver on activity targets for 
adult dental.

Achieved.

Review acute (including 
specialist clinics) data collection 
and reporting practices to 
facilitate greater transparency 
and timely public reporting of 
data.

Manage and effectively deliver 
information in line with the 
Barwon Health Digital Strategy 
2015-2020.

Achieved.

Develop tele-health service 
models to facilitate the delivery 
of high quality and equitable 
specialist services to patients 
across regional victoria.

Continue to develop the 
tele-health regional program 
for the Barwon south west 
(Bsw) as governed via the Bsw 
Ceo Council.

Achieved. stroke teleheath pilot 
- stage 2 complete.
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statement of pRioRities paRt B: peRfoRmance pRioRities

safety and Quality performance

Key performance indicator target 2015/2016 actual

Compliance with nsQHs standards accreditation Full Compliance Achieved

Compliance with the Commonwealth’s Aged Care Accreditation standards Full compliance Achieved

Cleaning standards Full Compliance Achieved

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program 80% 81%

percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza 75% 75%

patient experience and outcomes performance

Key performance indicator target 2015/2016 actual

victorian Healthcare experience survey – data submission Full Compliance Achieved

victorian Healthcare experience survey – patient experience 95% positive 
experience

89%

number of patients with surgical site infection no outliers Achieved

ICu central line-associated blood stream infection 1.5 Achieved

sAB rate per occupied bed days* <2/10,000 0.7

Maternity – percentage of women with prearranged postnatal home care 100% 100%

Mental Health – percentage of seclusion events relating to an acute 
admission – composite seclusion rate

15% 17.8%

Mental Health – percentage of adult inpatients who are readmitted within 
28 days of discharge

14% 12.1%

Mental Health – percentage of adult patients who have post-discharge 
follow-up within seven days

75% 81.9%

Mental Health – Rate of seclusion events relating to an adult acute 
admission

≤15/1,000 21/1000

Mental Health – percentage of child and adolescent patients with post-
discharge follow-up within seven days

75% 51%

Mental Health – percentage of aged patients who have post-discharge 
follow-up within seven days

75% 96.7%

Mental Health – Rate of seclusion events relating to an aged acute 
admission

≤15/1,000 3.6/1000

*note: sAB is staphylococcus aureus bacteraemia

source: DHHs mental health KpI reports. Accessed 02/08/2016. note that the recording of mental health outcomes 
performance has been affected by Industrial Action.

governance, leadership and culture performance

Key performance indicator target 2015/2016 actual

people Matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to 
safety culture questions

80% 90%
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financial sustainability performance

Key performance indicator target 2015/2016 actual

finance

operating Results ($m) 0.20  ($12.8)

trade Creditors <60 days 45 days

patient fee debtors <60 days 36 days

public and private wIes performance to target 100% 98.5%

asset management

Asset management plan Full compliance Achieved

Adjusted current asset ratio 0.7 0.62

Days of available cash 14 days 16.35 days

access performance

Key performance indicator target 2015/2016 actual

emeRgency caRe

percentage of ambulance patients transferred within 40 minutes 90% 91%

percentage of triage Category 1 emergency patients seen immediately 100% 100%

percentage of triage Category 1 to 5 emergency patients seen within 
clinically recommended times

80% 64%

percentage of emergency patients with a length of stay less than four 
hours

81% 60%

number of patients with a length of stay in the emergency department 
greater than 24 hours

0 0

elective suRgeRy

percentage of elective patients removed within clinically recommended 
timeframes

94% 95%

percentage of urgency Category 1 elective patients removed within 
30 days

100% 100%

10% longest waiting Category 2 and 3 removals from the elective surgery 
waiting list

100% 100%

number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list* 1,125 1,079

number of hospital initiated postponements per 100 scheduled 
admissions

≤8 /100 5.6

number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list – 
annual total

7,972 7,875

cRitical caRe

Adult ICu number of days below the agreed minimum operating 
capacity+

0 16 days

notes
 ›  *the target shown is the number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list as at 30 June 2016

 › +the agreed minimum operating capacity is 16 ICu equivalent beds, increasing to 17 ICu equivalent beds in April 2016
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statement of pRioRities paRt c: activity and funding

funding type
2015/2016 activity 

achievement actual ($‘000)

acute admitted

wIes public 48,457 221,137

wIes private 11,123 38,506

wIes (public and private) 59,580 259,643

wIes DvA 783 3,758

wIes tAC 440 1,842

wIes totAl 60,803 262,066

acute non-admitted

emergency services - 25,130

specialist Clinics – DvA - 27

specialist Clinics – non DvA - 25,728

Renal Dialysis – Home ABF 57 3,082

Radiotherapy wAus public 35,931 8,120

Radiotherapy wAus DvA 807 225

subacute & non-acute admitted

Rehab public 11,864 6,730

Rehab private 9,816 3,942

Rehab DvA 1,354 515

GeM public 13,217 6,186

GeM private 4,971 2,635

GeM DvA 815 691

palliative Care public 4,379 2,320

palliative Care private 2,068 1,351

palliative Care DvA 156 183

transition Care – Bed-days 12,410 1,849

transition Care – Homeday 6,570 342

subacute non-admitted

palliative Care other non-admitted - 1,319

Health Independence program 65,777 13,468

Health Independence program – DvA - 241

victorian Artificial limb program - 437

subacute non-Admitted other - 78

subacute & non-acute other

other specified funding - 1,060

aged care

Aged Care Assessment service - 2,334

Residential Aged Care 115,350 6,996

HACC 121,848 9,940

Aged Care other - 676
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funding type
2015/2016 activity 

achievement actual ($‘000)

mental health and drug services

Mental Health Inpatient – Bed Days 1,096 $602

Mental Health Inpatient – wot 11,713 $7,583

Mental Health Ambulatory 56,372 $24,552

Mental Health Residential 16,436 $1,635

Mental Health subacute 8,036 0

Mental Health: other - 0

Mental Health service system Capacity - 0

Drug services 2,351 $2,373

primary health

Community Health / primary Care programs 31,100 $3,273

Community Health: other - $1,487

other

Health workforce - $10,885

other specified Funding - $1,060

statement of pRioRities paRt d

the victorian health system has faced a number of changes to Commonwealth funding since 2012-13. the 2015-16 
Commonwealth Budget also presented significant changes to funding arrangements. the new funding arrangements 
will continue to be linked to actual activity levels between 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016.

the Commonwealth funding contribution outlined in the 2015-16 Commonwealth Budget was based on estimates and 
has since been updated by the Administrator of the national Health Funding pool, based on latest activity estimates 
from states and territories. However, given that final funding amounts are based on actual activity, there may be 
adjustments to funding throughout the year as a result of reconciliations and other factors outlined below.

period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

estimated national Weighted 
activity units total funding ($)

provisional commonwealth 
percentage (%)

Activity Based Funding 95,282 357,580,101

other Funding 36,720,923

total 394,301,024 47.5

note:
 › estimated national weighted Activity unit may be amended by the Department following the finalisation of the 

2014-15 reconciliation by the Administrator of the national Health Funding pool.

 › provisional Commonwealth Contribution percentage is subject to change following state-wide adjustments 
(i.e. cross border patient flows), the 2014-15 reconciliation and Commonwealth announcements (i.e. Mid-year 
economic and Fiscal outlook 2015-16).

 › Activity loadings are included in the estimated national weighted Activity units (i.e. paediatric, Indigenous, 
Remoteness, Intensive Care unit, private patient service Adjustment, and private patient Accommodation 
Adjustment).

 › In situations where a change is required to the part D, changes to the agreement will be actioned through an 
exchange of letters between the Department and the Health service Chief executive officer.
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the annual report of Barwon Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant victorian legislation. this index has been 
prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

legislation Requirement
page 
Reference

ministeRial diRections

Report of operations

charter and purpose

FRD 22G Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 06

FRD 22G purpose, functions, powers and duties 06

FRD 22G Initiatives and key achievements 02

FRD 22G nature and range of services provided 07

management and structure

FRD 22G organisational structure 10

financial and other information

FRD 10A Disclosure index 34

FRD 11A Disclosure of exgratia expenses 12

FRD 21B Responsible person and executive officer disclosures 95

FRD 22G Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012 15

FRD 22G Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 15

FRD 22G Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 15

FRD 22G Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 15

FRD 22G Details of consultancies over $10,000 13

FRD 22G Details of consultancies under $10,000 13

FRD 22G employment and conduct principles 13

FRD 22G Major changes or factors affecting performance 12

FRD 22G occupational health and safety 15

FRD 22G operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives 12

FRD 24C Reporting of office-based environmental impacts 16

FRD 22G significant changes in financial position during the year 12

FRD 22G statement on national Competition policy 16

FRD 22G subsequent events 12

FRD 22G summary of the financial results for the year 12

FRD 22G workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application of 
employment and conduct principles 

15

FRD 25B victorian Industry participation policy disclosures 11

FRD 29A workforce Data disclosures 11

sD 4.2(g) specific information requirements 16

sD 4.2(j) sign-off requirements 05

sD 3.4.13 Attestation on data integrity 17

sD 4.5.5.1 Ministerial standing Direction 4.5.5.1 compliance attestation 17

sD 4.5.5 Risk management compliance attestation 17
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legislation Requirement
page 
Reference

financial statements 

financial statements required under part 7 of the fma

sD 4.2(a) statement of changes in equity 39

sD 4.2(b) Comprehensive operating statement 37

sD 4.2(b) Balance sheet 38

sD 4.2(b) Cash flow statement 40

other requirements under standing directions 4.2

sD 4.2(a) Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative 
pronouncements

41

sD 4.2(c) Accountable officer’s declaration 99

sD 4.2(c) Compliance with Ministerial Directions 99

sD 4.2(d) Rounding of amounts 42

legislation

Freedom of Information Act 1982 15

Protected Disclosure Act 2012 15

Carers Recognition Act 2012 15

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 15

Building Act 1993 15

Financial Management Act 1994 06
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note

parent entity 
2016 

$’000

parent entity 
2015 

$’000

consol'd 
2016 

$’000

consol'd 
2015 

$’000

Revenue from operating Activities 2 614,281 577,665 614,657 577,665

Revenue from non-operating Activities 2 2,945 6,530 3,033 6,530

employee Benefits 3 (448,038) (425,848) (448,037) (425,848)

non salary labour Costs 3 (9,904) (10,294) (9,903) (10,294)

supplies, Consumables and purchased services 3 (108,109) (89,570) (108,108) (89,570)

other expenses from Continuing operations 3 (63,971) (57,155) (62,479) (57,155)

net Result before capital and specific items (12,796) 1,328 (10,837) 1,328

                        

Capital purpose Income 2 34,970 52,310 34,724 52,310

(loss) / Gain on Revaluation of non-Current 
Assets

2 530 431 530 431

Depreciation and Amortisation 4 (43,324) (40,948) (43,324) (40,948)

expenditure using Capital purpose Income 3 (3,364) (1,344) (3,118) (1,344)

specific expenditure 3  -   (1,080)  -   (1,080)

Impairment of Financial Assets 3  -   (205)  -   (205)

share of Revenue from Joint operation 24 5,291 4,861 5,291 4,861

share of expenditure from Joint operation 24 (5,289) (4,858) (5,289) (4,858)

net Result foR the yeaR fRom 
continuing opeRations

(23,982) 10,495 (22,023) 10,495

operational profit/(loss) from Discontinued 
operation

30  -   (1,232)  -   (1,232)

Capital profit/(loss) from Discontinued 
operation

30 - (344) - (344)

net Result foR the yeaR (23,982) 8,919 (22,023) 8,919

other comprehensive income

items that may be reclassified to net result

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale 
financial assets

21  1,013 (755)  1,013 (755)

total other comprehensive income  1,013 (755)  1,013 (755)

compRehensive Result foR the yeaR (22,969) 8,164 (21,010) 8,164

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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note

parent entity 
2016 

$’000

parent entity 
2015 

$’000

consol'd 
2016 

$’000

consol'd 
2015 

$’000

assets

current assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 22 11,158 12,696  11,276 12,696

Receivables 9 41,476 21,803  41,487 21,803

Investments and other Financial Assets 10 19,879 5,829  20,588 5,829

Inventories 11 4,246 3,698  4,247 3,698

share of Assets in Joint operation 24 5,852 4,773  5,852 4,773

non-financial assets classified as held for sale 12 1,743  3,169  1,743  3,169 

total current assets  84,353 51,968  85,192 51,968

non-current assets

Receivables 9 22,127 20,873  22,127 20,873

Investments and other Financial Assets 10  9,382 31,142  10,509 31,142

property, plant and equipment 13 579,385 588,439  579,385 588,439

Intangible Assets 14  1,770 1,954  1,770 1,954

Investment properties 15 15,158 13,028  15,158 13,028

total non-current assets 627,822 655,436 628,949 655,436

total assets 712,175 707,404 714,141 707,404

liaBilities

current liabilities

payables 16 39,582 26,941  39,588 26,941

Monies Held in trust 17 10,738 8,105  10,739 8,105

share of liabilities in Joint operation 24 5,726 4,649  5,726 4,649

employee Benefits and related on-cost provisions 19 97,340 89,698  97,340 89,698

total current liabilities 153,386 129,393 153,393 129,393

non-current liabilities

employee Benefits and related on-cost provisions 19 20,533 18,507  20,533 18,507

total non-current liabilities 20,533 18,507  20,533 18,507

total liaBilities 173,919 147,900  173,926 147,900

net assets 538,257 559,504 540,215 559,504

eQuity

land Revaluation Reserve 21 36,733 36,733 36,733 36,733

Buildings Revaluation Reserve 21 234,565 234,565 234,565 234,565

Available-for-sale Revaluation Reserve 21 (87) 130 (87) 130

Restricted specific purpose Reserve 21 11,640 11,180 11,640 11,180

Internally Managed Reserves 21 13,617 4,532 13,617 4,532

Contributed Capital 21 233,194 230,243 233,194 230,243

Accumulated surplus / (Deficit) 21 8,595 42,121 10,553 42,121

total eQuity  538,257 559,504 540,215 559,504

Commitment for expenditure 25

Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets 26

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance sheet
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consolidated note

land 
Reval 

Reserve 
$’000

Building 
Reval 

Reserve 
$’000

available 
-for-sale   
financial   

assets 
Reserve 

$’000

Restricted 
specific 

purpose 
Reserve 

$’000

internally 
managed 

specific 
purpose 
Reserve 

$’000

contributed 
capital 

$’000

accumulated 
surpluses/ 

(deficits) 
$’000

total 
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2015 36,733 234,565 130 11,180 4,532 230,243 42,121 559,504

net Result for the 
year

21  -  -  -  -  -  - (22,023) (22,023)

transfer to Reserves 21  -  -  - 460  9,085  - (9,545)  - 

Movement in 
Reserves

21  -  - (217)  -  -  -  - (217)

Contribution from 
victorian Government

21  -  -  -  -  -  2,951  - 2,951

Balance at 30 June 
2016

36,733 234,565 (87) 11,640 13,617 233,194 10,553 540,215

Balance at 1 July 2014 36,733 234,565 3,597 10,418 29,959 215,405 8,537 539,214

net Result for the 
year

21  -  -  -  -  -  - 8,919 8,919

transfer to Reserves 21  -  -  - 763 (25,427)  - 24,664  -   

Movement in 
Reserves

21  -  - (3,467)  -  -  -  - (3,467)

Contribution from 
victorian Government

21  -  -  -  -  - 14,838  - 14,838

Balance at 30 June 
2015

36,733 234,565 130 11,180 4,532 230,243 42,121 559,504

parent note

land 
Reval 

Reserve 
$’000

Building 
Reval 

Reserve 
$’000

available 
-for-sale   
financial   

assets 
Reserve 

$’000

Restricted 
specific 

purpose 
Reserve 

$’000

internally 
managed 

specific 
purpose 
Reserve 

$’000

contributed 
capital 

$’000

accumulated 
surpluses/ 

(deficits) 
$’000

total 
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2015 36,733 234,565 130 11,180 4,532 230,243 42,121 559,504

net Result for the year 21  -  -  -  -  -  - (23,981) (23,981)

transfer to Reserves 21  -  -  -  460  9,085  - (9,545) -

Movement in Reserves 21  -  - (217)  -  -  -  - (217)

Contribution from 
victorian Government

21  -  -  -  -  -  2,951  - 2,951

Balance at 30 June 
2016

36,733 234,565 (87) 11,640 13,617 233,194 8,595 538,257

Balance at 1 July 2014 36,733 234,565 3,597 10,418 29,959 215,405 8,537 539,214

net Result for the year 21  -  -  -  -  -  - 8,919 8,919

transfer to Reserves 21  -  -  - 763 (25,427)  - 24,664  -   

Movement in Reserves 21  -  - (3,467)  -  -  -  - (3,467)

Contribution from 
victorian Government

21  -  -  -  -  -  14,838  - 14,838

Balance at 30 June 
2015

36,733 234,565 130 11,180 4,532 230,243 42,121 559,504

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

statement of Changes in equity
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note

parent 
entity 

2016 
$’000

parent 
entity 

2015 
$’000

consol'd 
2016 

$’000

consol'd 
2015 

$’000

cash floWs fRom opeRating activities

operating Grants from Government 472,580 453,655 472,580 453,655

patient and Resident Fees Received 55,320 54,763 55,320 54,763

Gst Received from Ato 12,398 15,024 12,395 15,024

pharmaceutical sales 19,059 12,733 19,059 12,733

linen Fees 951  -   951  -   

pharmaceutical Benefits scheme 32,231 19,864 32,231 19,864

Recoupment from private practice for use of hospital 
facilities 

2,604 3,518 2,604 3,518

Investment Income Receipts 2,556 3,423 2,596 3,423

other Receipts 34,597 30,139 34,536 30,139

total Receipts 632,296 593,119 632,272 593,119

employee Benefits paid (456,945) (430,856) (456,945) (430,856)

payments for supplies, Consumables and purchased 
services

(151,372) (139,319) (149,696) (139,319)

It services and software (11,840) (10,594) (11,894) (10,594)

Repairs and Maintenance (7,842) (8,235) (7,878) (8,235)

Fuel, light, power and water (5,845) (6,206) (5,872) (6,206)

Maintenance Contracts (6,945) (4,961) (6,977) (4,961)

operating lease payments (1,830) (1,425) (1,830) (1,425)

total payments (642,619) (601,596) (641,092) (601,596)

cash generated from operations (10,323) (8,477) (8,820) (8,477)

Capital Grants from Government 31,891 47,140 31,891 47,140

Capital Donation and Bequests Received 2,717 3,970 3,156 3,970

net cash floW fRom opeRating activities 22(b)  24,285 42,633  26,227 42,633

cash floWs fRom investing activities

payments for non-Financial Assets (35,621) (78,440) (35,621) (78,440)

proceeds from sale of non-Financial Assets 1,774 3,784 1,774 3,784

purchase of Investments (17,200) (11,648) (19,036) (11,648)

proceeds from sale of Investments 23,461 30,158 23,474 30,158

net cash floW used in investing activities (27,586) (56,146) (29,409) (56,146)

cash floWs fRom financing activities

Contributed Capital from Government 2,951 14,838 2,951 14,838

net cash floW fRom financing activities 2,951 14,838  2,951  14,838 

Cash flows used in Discontinued operation 30  -   (933)  -   (933)

net incRease / (decRease) in cash and cash 
eQuivalents held

(350) 392 (231) 392

CAsH AnD CAsH eQuIvAlents At BeGInnInG oF FInAnCIAl 
yeAR

11,069 10,677 11,069 10,677

cash and cash eQuivalents at the end of financial 
yeaR

22(a)  10,719 11,069  10,838 11,069

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1.1 statement of compliance

these annual financial statements represent the audited 
general purpose financial statements for Barwon Health 
for the period ending 30 June 2016. the purpose of the 
report is to provide users with information about Barwon 
Health’s stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

these financial statements are general purpose financial 
statements which have been prepared in accordance 
with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable 
Australian Accounting standards (AAss), which include 
interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
standards Board (AAsB). they are presented in a 
manner consistent with the requirements of AAsB 101 
Presentation of Financial Statements.

the financial statements also comply with relevant 
Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the 
Department of treasury and Finance, and relevant 
standing Directions (sDs) authorised by the Minister 
of Finance.

Barwon Health is a not-for-profit entity and therefore 
applies the additional Australian paragraphs applicable to 
“not-for-profit” entities under the AAss.

the annual financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Board of Barwon Health on 10 August 2016.

1.2  Basis of accounting pRepaRation 
and measuRement

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner 
which ensures that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, 
thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying 
transactions or other events is reported.

the accounting policies set out below have been applied 
in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2016, and the comparative information presented 
in these financial statements for the year ended 30 
June 2015.

As a result of the financial performance and position, 
Barwon Health has obtained a letter of support from 
the state Government and in particular, the Department 
of Health and Human services (DHHs), confirming that 
the department will continue to provide Barwon Health 
adequate cash flow to meet its current and future 
obligations up to september 2017. on that basis, the 
financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis.

the financial statements, except for cash flow 
information, have been prepared using the accrual 

basis of accounting. under the accrual basis, items 
are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income 
or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those items, that is they are 
recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, 
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

the financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
the historical cost convention, except for the revaluation 
of certain non-financial assets and financial instruments, 
as noted. particularly, exceptions to the historical cost 
convention include:

 › non-current physical assets, which, subsequent 
to acquisition, are measured at a revalued amount 
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation 
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and 
subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are 
made and are re-assessed when new indices are 
published by the valuer General to ensure that the 
carrying amounts do not materially differ from their 
fair values;

 › Investment properties after initial recognition, which 
are measured at fair value through profit and loss;

 › Available-for-sale investments which are 
measured at fair value with movements reflected 
in equity until the asset is derecognised (i.e. other 
comprehensive income – items that may be 
reclassified subsequent to net result); and

 › the fair value of assets other than land is generally 
based on their depreciated replacement value.

In the application of AAss management is required to 
make judgment, estimates and assumptions about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. Management have 
made judgements and estimates specifically in the 
following areas: 

 › Discount rates and inflation factors used in the 
calculation of employee benefits, disclosed further 
in note 1.37 and 19;

 › Bad debt write offs, disclosed further in note 1.23 and 
9; and

 › Fair value of financial and non-financial assets, 
disclosed further in notes 12, 13, 14 and 15.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and also in future 
periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements 
and assumptions made by management in the 
application of AAss that have significant effects on the 
financial statements and estimates relate to: 

 › the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment, (refer to note 1.30);

note 1: statement of significant 
accounting policies
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 › superannuation expense (refer to note 1.17); and

 › Actuarial assumptions for employee benefit 
provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, 
patterns of leave claims, future salary movements 
and future discount rates (refer to note 1.37).

the estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the judgments. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Barwon Health determines the policies and procedures 
for both recurring fair value measurements such as 
property, plant and equipment, investment properties 
and financial instruments, and for non-recurring fair value 
measurements such as non-financial physical assets held 
for sale, in accordance with the requirements of AAsB 13 
and the relevant FRDs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole:

 › level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

 › level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

 › level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Barwon Health 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

In addition, Barwon Health determines whether transfers 
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

the valuer-General victoria (vGv) is Barwon Health’s 
independent valuation agency.

Barwon Health, in conjunction with vGv monitors the 
changes in the fair value of each asset and liability 
through relevant data sources to determine whether 
revaluation is required.

valuation policies and processes used by Barwon Health 
are detailed further in notes 1.25, 1.26, 1.28, 1.29, 1.30, 1.31, 
1.32 and 1.33.

the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the 
period of the revision, and future periods if the revision 
affects both current and future periods. Judgements and 
assumptions made by management in the application 
of Australian Accounting standards that have significant 
effects on the finanical statements and estimates, with a 
risk of material adjustments in the subsequent reporting 
period, relate to:

 › the fair value of land, buildings infrastructure, plant 
and equipment, (refer to note 1.30);

 › Actuarial assumptions for employee benefit 
provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, 
patterns of leave claims, future salary movements 
and future discount rates (refer to note 1.37).

1.3 RepoRting entity

the financial statements include all the controlled 
activities of Barwon Health. 

Its principal address is: 
Ryrie street, 
Geelong victoria 3220

A description of the nature of Barwon Health’s 
operations and its principal activities is included in the 
report of operations, which does not form part of these 
financial statements.

1.4 Rounding of amounts

All amounts shown in the financial statements are 
rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars unless 
otherwise stated.

Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of 
components may be present due to rounding.

1.5  functional and 
pResentation cuRRency

the presentation currency of Barwon Health is the 
Australian dollar, which has also been identified as the 
functional currency of Barwon Health.

note 1: statement of significant 
accounting policies
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1.6  scope and pResentation of 
financial statements

principles of consolidation
In accordance with AAsB 10 Consolidated 
Financial statements:

 › the consolidated financial statements of Barwon 
Health include all reporting entities controlled by 
Barwon Health as at 30 June 2016; and

 › Control exists when Barwon Health has the power 
to govern the financial and operating policies of 
an organisation so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights 
that presently are exercisable are taken into account. 
the consolidated financial statements include 
the audited financial statements of the controlled 
entities listed in note 32.

where control of an entity is obtained during the financial 
period, its results are included in the comprehensive 
operating statement from the date on which control 
commenced. where control ceases during a financial 
period, the entity’s results are included for that part 
of the period in which control existed. where entities 
adopt dissimilar accounting policies and their effect 
is considered material, adjustments are made to 
ensure consistent policies are adopted in these 
financial statements.

entities consolidated into Barwon Health reporting 
entity include:

 › Barwon Health Foundation Future Fund limited 
and the trustee of Barwon Health Future Fund are 
controlled entities of Barwon Health by virtue of 
the existence of congruent objectives, exposure to 
variable returns and significant management control 
over these entities.

intersegment transactions
transactions between segments within Barwon Health 
have been eliminated to reflect the extent of Barwon 
Health’s operations as a group.

Joint arrangements
Interests in jointly controlled operations and assets are 
accounted for by recognising in Barwon Health’s financial 
statements, its share of assets, liabilities and any revenue 
and expenses of such joint arrangements. Details of the 
joint arrangement are set out in note 24.

fund accounting
Barwon Health operates on a fund accounting basis and 
maintains three funds: operating, specific purpose and 
Capital Funds. the Capital and specific purpose funds 
include unspent capital donations and receipts from 
fundraising activities conducted solely in respect of 
these funds.

services supported By health services agreement 
and services supported By hospital and community 
initiatives
the activities classified as services supported by Health 
services Agreement (HsA) are substantially funded 
by the Department of Health and Human services, 
and are also funded from other sources such as the 
Commonwealth, patients and residents, while services 
supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives (H & 
CI) are funded by Barwon Health’s own activities or local 
initiatives and/or the Commonwealth.

Residential aged care service 
the aged care service is substantially funded from 
Commonwealth bed-day subsidies. the nursing home 
operations are an integral part of the Hospital and share 
its resources. the results of the two operations have 
been segregated based on actual revenue earned and 
expenditure incurred by each operation in notes 3 and 5 
to the financial statements.

comprehensive operating statement
the sub-total entitled ‘net Result before Capital 
and specific Items’ is included in the Comprehensive 
operating statement to enhance the understanding 
of the financial performance of Barwon Health. this 
sub-total reports the result excluding items such as 
capital grants, depreciation and items of an unusual 
nature and amount such as specific revenues and 
expenses. the exclusion of these items are made to 
enhance matching of income and expenses so as to 
facilitate the comparability and consistency of results 
between years and victorian public Health services. the 
‘net Result before Capital and specific Items’ is used by 
the management of Barwon Health, the Department 
of Health and Human services, and the victorian 
Government to measure the ongoing result of Barwon 
Health in operating hospital services. 
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1.6  scope and pResentation of 
financial statements continued

Capital and specific items, which are excluded from this 
sub-total, comprise:

 › Capital purpose income, which comprises all tied 
grants, donations and bequests received for the 
purpose of acquiring non-current assets, such as 
capital works, plant and equipment or intangible 
assets. Consequently the recognition of revenue as 
capital purpose income is based on the intention of 
the provider of the revenue at the time the revenue 
is provided. 

 › Depreciation and amortisation.

expenditure using capital purpose income comprises 
expenditure which either falls below the asset 
capitalisation threshold, or does not meet asset 
recognition criteria and therefore does not result 
in the recognition of an asset in the balance sheet, 
where funding for that expenditure is from capital 
purpose income.

other economic flows are changes arising from market 
remeasurements. they include:

 › Gains and losses from disposals of non-
financial assets;

 › Revaluations and impairments of non-financial 
physical and intangible assets;

 › fair value changes of financial instruments.

specific income/expense comprising the revaluation 
increments/decrements of investment properties owned 
by Barwon Health, as described in note 15.

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 
includes all impairment losses (and reversal of previous 
impairment losses) which have been recognised in 
accordance with notes 1.26, 1.29 and 1.30.

Finance costs include interest on short-term and long-
term borrowings and finance charges.

Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current or 
non-current (non-current being those assets or liabilities 
expected to be recovered / settled more than 12 months 
after reporting period) and are disclosed in the notes 
where relevant.

statement of changes in equity
the statement of changes in equity presents 
reconciliations of each non-owner and owner equity 
opening balance at the beginning of the reporting 
period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting 
period. It also shows separately changes due to amounts 
recognised in the comprehensive result and amounts 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they 
arise from operating activities, investing activities, or 
financing activities. this classification is consistent with 
requirements under AAsB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.

1.7 income fRom tRansactions

Income is recognised in accordance with AAsB 118 
Revenue. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to Barwon 
Health and the income can be reliably measured at fair 
value. unearned income at reporting date is reported 
as income received in advance. Amounts disclosed as 
revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances 
and duties and taxes.

1.8  goveRnment gRants and otheR 
tRansfeRs of income (otheR than 
contRiButions By oWneRs)

In accordance with AAsB 1004 Contributions, government 
grants and other transfers of income (other than 
contributions by owners) are recognised as income when 
Barwon Health gains control of the underlying assets 
irrespective of whether conditions are imposed on 
Barwon Health’s use of the contributions. 

Contributions are deferred as income in advance when 
Barwon Health has a present obligation to repay them 
and the present obligation can be reliably measured.

note 1: statement of significant 
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1.9  indiRect contRiButions fRom 
the depaRtment of health and 
human seRvices

the Department of Health and Human services meets 
certain costs on behalf of Barwon Health. Barwon Health 
recognises both the costs and contributions relating to 
these items as follows:

 › Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice 
from the Department of Health and Human services. 

 › long service leave is recognised upon finalisation 
of movements in lsl liability in line with the 
arrangements set out in the “Metropolitan Health 
and Aged Care services Division Hospital Circular 
05/2013 (update for 2014-15).”

1.10 patient and Resident fees

patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time 
invoices are raised.

1.11 pRivate pRactice fees

private practice fees are recognised as revenue at the 
time invoices are raised.

1.12 donations and otheR BeQuests

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue 
when received. Donations from the community and 
estate bequests are included in the Comprehensive 
operating statement. unspent donations which are 
for a specific purpose may be appropriated to a specific 
purpose reserve.

1.13 dividend Revenue

Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to 
receive payment is established. Dividends represent the 
income arising from Barwon Health’s investments in 
financial assets.

1.14 inteRest Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate 
basis that takes in account the effective yield of 
the financial asset, which allocates interest over the 
relevant period.

1.15 sale of investments

the gain/loss on the sale of investments is recognised 
when the investment is realised.

1.16 expense Recognition

expenses are recognised as they are incurred and 
reported in the financial year to which they relate.

1.17 employee expenses

employee expenses include

 › wages and salaries;

 › Annual leave;

 › sick leave;

 › on costs;

 › long service leave; and

 › superannuation expenses which are reported 
differently depending upon whether employees 
are members of defined benefit or defined 
contribution plans.

defined contribution superannuation plans
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation 
plans are expensed when incurred.

defined Benefit superannuation plans
the amount charged to the Comprehensive operating 
statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation 
plans represents the contributions made by Barwon 
Health to the superannuation plan in respect of the 
services of current Barwon Health staff. superannuation 
contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant 
rules of each plan.

employees of Barwon Health are entitled to receive 
superannuation benefits and Barwon Health contributes 
to both the defined benefit and defined contribution 
plans. the defined benefit plans provide benefits based 
on years of service and final average salary. 

the name and details of the major employee 
superannuation funds and contributions made by 
Barwon Health are disclosed in note 20.
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1.18 depReciation

Assets with a cost in excess of $2,000 (2015: $2,000) 
are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on 
depreciable assets so as to allocate their cost or valuation 
over their useful lives. the exception is It assets which 
are capitalised if in excess of $5,000 (2015: $5,000). 
Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line 
basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any 
estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. 
estimates of the remaining useful lives and depreciation 
method for all assets are reviewed at least annually. this 
depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of 
Health and Human services.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and 
equipment, including freehold buildings, but excluding 
land and investment properties. Depreciation begins 
when the asset is available for use, which is when it is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in a manner intended by management.

the following table indicates the expected useful lives 
of non-current assets on which the depreciation charges 
are based.

2016 2015

Buildings and 
leasehold 
Improvements

3–50 years 3–50 years

plant and 
equipment

5–10 years 5–10 years

Medical 
equipment

5–10 years 5–10 years

Furniture and 
Fittings

5–10 years 5–10 years

linen 3–5 years 3–5 years

Intangible 
Assets

4–5 years 4–5 years

Motor vehicles 4–6 years 4–6 years

Building works currently in progress are not depreciated 
until the completion of the building project.

As part of the buildings valuation, building values were 
componentised and each component assessed for its 
useful life which is represented in the above table.

amortisation:
Amortisation is allocated to intangible non-produced 
assets with finite useful lives on a systematic 
(typically straight line) basis over the asset’s useful life. 
Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, 
that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management. the consumption of intangible non-
produced assets with finite useful lives is classified 
as amortisation.

the amortisation period and amortisation methods for 
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed 
at least at the end of each annual reporting period. In 
addition, an assessment is made at each reporting date 
to determine whether there are indicators that the 
intangible asset concerned is impaired. If so, the asset 
concerned is tested as to whether its carrying value 
exceeds its recoverable amount.

1.19 finance costs

Finance Costs are recognised as expenses in the period 
in which they are incurred. Finance costs include interest 
on short-term and long-term borrowings and finance 
charges in respect of leases recognised in accordance 
with AAsB 117 leases.

1.20 otheR opeRating expenses

other operating expenses generally represent the 
day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations 
and include:

supplies and consumables
supplies and service costs which are recognised as an 
expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. 
the carrying amounts of any inventories held for 
distribution are expensed when distributed.

Bad and doubtful debts
Refer to note 1.26 Impairment of Financial Assets

note 1: statement of significant 
accounting policies
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1.21 financial instRuments

Financial instruments arise out of the contractual 
agreements that give rise to financial assets, financial 
liabilities or equity instruments of Barwon Health. Due to 
the nature of Barwon Health’s activities, certain financial 
assets and financial liabilities, such as taxes, arise under 
statute rather than a contract and therefore do not 
meet the definition of financial instruments in AAsB 132 
Financial Instruments: Presentation. the following refers 
to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.

loans and Receivables
loans and receivables are financial instrument assets 
with fixed and determinable payments that are not 
quoted on an active market. these assets are initially 
recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. subsequent to initial measurment 
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

loans and receivables category includes cash and 
deposits, term deposits with maturity greater than three 
months, trade receivables, loans and other receivables, 
but not statutory receivables.

available-for-sale financial assets
shares and fixed and floating debt obligations held by 
Barwon Health are classified as being available for sale 
and measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value are recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income until the investment is disposed 
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity 
is included in the net result for the period. Fair value is 
determined in the manner described in note 23.

financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities include all of Barwon 
Health’s contractual payables and deposits held and 
advances received. they are initially measured at fair 
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
subsequent to initial recognition, these financial 
instruments are measured at amortised cost with any 
difference between the initial recognised amount in the 
redemption value being recognised in profit and loss 
over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using 
the effective interest rate method. Financial instrument 
liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of 
Barwon Health’s contractual payables, deposits held and 
advances received, and interest-bearing arrangements 
other than those designated at fair value through profit 
or loss.

Revaluations of financial instruments at fair value
the revaluation gain/(loss) on financial instruments 
at fair value excludes dividends or interest earned on 
financial assets.

1.22 cash and cash eQuivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance 
sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits 
at call and highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.23 ReceivaBles 

Receivables consist of:

 › Contractual receivables, which includes mainly 
debtors in relation to goods and services, loans 
to third parties, accrued investment income, and 
finance lease receivables; and

 › statutory receivables, which includes predominantly 
amounts owing from the victorian Government 
and Goods and services tax (“Gst”) input tax 
credits recoverable.

Receivables that are contractually classified as financial 
instruments and categorised as loans and receivables. 
statutory receivables are recognised and measured 
similarly to contractual receivables (except impairment), 
but are not classified as financial instruments because 
they do not arise from a contract.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest method, less any accumulated 
impairment. trade debtors are carried at nominal 
amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days 
from the date of recognition. Collectability of debts is 
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known 
to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful 
debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that 
an impairment loss has occurred. Bad debts are written 
off when identified.

1.24 pRepayments

other non-financial assets include prepayments, which 
represent payments in advance of receipt of goods 
or services or that part of expenditure made in one 
accounting period covering a term extending beyond 
that period.
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1.25  investments and otheR 
financial assets

Investments and other financial assets are recognised 
and derecognised on trade date where purchase or 
sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms 
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe 
established by the market concerned, and are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Barwon Health classifies its other financial assets 
between current and non-current assets based on 
the purpose for which the assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its other 
financial assets at initial recognition.

Barwon Health assesses at each balance sheet date 
whether a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired.

1.26 impaiRment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, Barwon Health 
assesses whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets are impaired. 
All financial instrument assets, except those measured 
at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual 
review for impairment. Receivables are assessed for 
bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Bad debts 
considered as written off and allowances for doubtful 
receivables are expensed. Bad debt written off by 
mutual consent and the allowance for doubtful debts 
are classified as ‘other comprehensive income’ in the 
net result.

the amount of the allowance is the difference between 
the finanical asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
effective interest rate.

where the fair value of an investment in an equity 
instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 percent or 
more than its cost price or where its fair value has been 
less than its cost price for a period of 12 months or more, 
the finanical asset is treated as impaired. In order to 
determine an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 2016 for 
its portfolio of finanical assets, Barwon Health obtained 
a valuation based on the best available advice using an 
estimated market value through a reputable financial 
institution. this value was compared against valuation 
methodologies provided by the issuer as at 30 June 2016. 
these methodologies were critiqued and considered to be 
consistent with standard market valuation techniques. 

1.27  net gain / (loss) on 
financial instRuments

net gain / (loss) on financial instruments is made up of the 
disposals of financial assets.

1.28 inventoRies 

Inventories include pharmaceutical, medical, surgical and 
other bulk purchases. Inventories are valued at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the 
average purchase price of items. pharmaceuticals held for 
distribution are measured at the lower of cost and current 
replacement cost.

1.29  non-financial physical assets 
classified as held-foR-sale

non-financial physical assets and disposal groups 
and related liabilities are treated as current and are 
classified as held-for-sale if their carrying amount will 
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use. the condition is regarded as met 
only when the sale is highly probable, the asset’s sale 
(or disposal group) is expected to be completed within 12 
months from the date of classification, and the asset is 
available for immediate use in the current condition.

non-financial physical assets (including disposal groups) 
classified as held-for-sale are treated as current and are 
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation.

1.30 pRopeRty, plant and eQuipment 

All non-current physical assets are measured initially 
at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. where an 
asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair 
value at the date of acquisition.

Crown land is measured at fair value with regard to the 
property’s highest and best use after due consideration 
is made for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed 
on the asset, public announcements or commitments 
made in relation to the intended use of the asset. 
theoretical opportunities that may be available in 
relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is 
virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. 
therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of 
these non-financial physical assets will be their highest 
and best uses.

note 1: statement of significant 
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land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and 
subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

plant, equipment and vehicles are recognised initially 
at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciated 
historical cost is generally a reasonable proxy for 
depreciated replacement cost because of the short lives 
of the assets concerned.

1.31  Revaluations of non-cuRRent 
physical assets

non-current physical assets are measured at fair value 
and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103F Non-
current physical assets. this revaluation process normally 
occurs at least every five years, based upon the asset’s 
Government purpose Classification, but may occur more 
frequently if fair value assessments indicate material 
changes in values. Independent valuers are used to 
conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim 
revaluations are determined in accordance with the 
requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or 
decrements arise from differences between an asset’s 
carrying value and fair value.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other 
comprehensive income’ and are credited directly to the 
asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that 
an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect 
of that same class of asset previously recognised as an 
expense in net result, the increment is recognised as 
income in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as 
expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that 
a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation reserve 
in respect of the same class of assets, they are debited 
directly to the asset revaluation reserve.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating 
to individual assets within an asset class are offset 
against one another within that class but are not offset in 
respect of assets in different classes.

Revaluation surpluses are not transferred to accumulated 
funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.

In accordance with FRD 103F, Barwon Health’s non-
current physical assets were assessed to determine 
whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets 
was required.

1.32 intangiBle assets 

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-
monetary assets without physical substance such as 
computer software. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful 
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred 
subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it 
is expected that additional future economic benefits will 
flow to Barwon Health.

Amortisation is allocated to intangible assets with finite 
useful lives on a straight-line basis over the asset’s 
useful life. they are amortised over a 4 year period 
(2015: 4 years).

the amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of 
each annual reporting period. In addition, an assessment 
is made at each reporting date to determine whether 
there are indicators that the intangible asset concerned 
is impaired, in accordance with AAsB 136 Impairment 
of Assets. If so, the assets concerned are tested as to 
whether their carrying value exceeds their recoverable 
amount. Any excess of the carrying amount over the 
recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss.

1.33 investment pRopeRties

Investment properties represent properties held to earn 
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment 
properties exclude properties held to meet service 
delivery and objectives of the state of victoria. 

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. 
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are 
capitalised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits in excess of the originally assessed performance 
of the asset will flow to the entity. 

subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment 
properties are revalued to fair value, determined annually 
by independent valuers or assessed for indication 
of material movements. Fair values are determined 
based on a market comparable approach that reflects 
recent transaction prices for similar properties. 
Investment properties are neither depreciated nor tested 
for impairment.

Rental revenue from leasing of investment properties is 
recognised in the Comprehensive operating statement in 
the periods in which it is receivable on a straight line basis 
over the lease term.
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1.34  net gain / (loss) on non-
financial assets

net gain / (loss) on non-financial assets includes realised 
and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations, 
impairments and disposals of all physical assets and 
intangible assets.

disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assets is 
recognised at the date that control of the asset is passed 
to the buyer and is determined after deducting from the 
proceeds the carrying value of the asset at that time.

impairment of non-financial assets
All assets are assessed annually for indications of 
impairment, except for inventories.

If there is an indication of impairment, the assets 
concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value 
exceeds their possible recoverable amount. where an 
asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, 
the difference is written-off as an expense except to the 
extent that the write-down can be debited to an asset 
revaluation reserve amount applicable to that same class 
of asset.

1.35 payaBles

payables consist of contractual payables which consist 
predominantly of accounts payable representing 
liabilities for goods and services provided to Barwon 
Health prior to the end of the financial year that are 
unpaid, and arise when Barwon Health becomes obliged 
to make future payments in respect of the purchase of 
those goods and services. the normal credit terms for 
accounts payable are usually 30 days. statutory payables 
are also included, such as goods and services tax and 
fringe benefits tax payables. 

Contractual payables are classified as financial 
instruments and are initially recognised at fair value, and 
then subsequently carried at amortised cost. statutory 
payables are recognised and measured similarly to 
contractual payables, but are not classified as financial 
instruments and not included in the category of finanical 
liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise 
from a contract.

Monies held in trust represents money held on behalf 
of aged residential patients. Refundable entrance Fees 
represent aged residential patients’ deposits held in trust 
while the patient is in an aged care facility.

1.36 inteRest BeaRing liaBilities

Interest bearing liabilities in the Balance sheet are 
recognised at fair value upon initial recognition. 
subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing 
liabilities are measured at amortised cost with any 
difference between the initial recognised amount and 
the redemption value being recognised in the net result 
over the period of the interest bearing liability using the 
effective interest method. Fair value is determined in the 
manner described in note 23.

1.37 employee Benefits

Wages and salaries, annual leave and accrued days off
this provision arises for benefits accruing to employees 
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.

liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
benefits and annual leave, are all recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’, 
because Barwon Health does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of 
settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave 
and sick leave are measured at:

 › undiscounted value – if Barwon Health expects to 
wholly settle within 12 months; or

 › present value – if Barwon Health does not expect to 
wholly settle within 12 months.

long service leave
the liability for long service leave (lsl) is recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits.

Current Liability

unconditional lsl (representing 10 or more years 
of continuous service) is disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements as a current liability even 
where Barwon Health does not expect to settle the 
liability within 12 months because it will not have the 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
entitlement should an employee take leave within 
12 months.

the components of this current lsl liability are 
measured at:

note 1: statement of significant 
accounting policies

notes to the financial statements

[continued]



Financial RepoRt

51

 › present value - component that Barwon Health does 
not expect to settle within 12 months; and

 › nominal value - component that Barwon Health 
expects to settle within 12 months.

Non-Current Liability

Conditional lsl (representing less than 10 years of 
continuous service) is disclosed as a non-current liability. 
there is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of 
the entitlement until the employee has completed the 
requisite years of service. Conditional lsl is required to be 
measured at present value.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels, experience of employee departures and periods 
of service. expected future payments are discounted 
using interest rates of Commonwealth Government 
guaranteed securities in Australia.

Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present 
value of non-current lsl liability is recognised as a 
transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises 
due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then 
recognised as another economic flow.

superannuation liabilities
Barwon Health does not recognise any unfunded benefit 
liability in respect of the superannuation plans because 
Barwon Health has no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further benefits relating to its employees; its only 
obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as 
they fall due. the Department of treasury and Finance 
administers and discloses the state’s defined benefit 
liabilities in its financial statements. 

employee Benefit on-costs
employee benefit on-costs, such as workers 
compensation and superannuation are recognised 
together with provisions for employee benefits.

1.38 leases

leases are classified at their inception as either operating 
or finance leases based on the economic substance of 
the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership.

leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as 
finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

finance leases
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at 
amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if 
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payment, 
each determined at the inception of the lease. the lease 
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. Minimum 
lease payments are apportioned between reduction 
of the outstanding lease liability, and the periodic 
finance expense which is calculated using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease, and charged directly to the 
Comprehensive operating statement.

operating leases
Rental income from operating leases are recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
in the Comprehensive operating statement over the 
lease term on a straight-line basis which is representative 
of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets 
and accordingly are charged against revenue in the 
periods in which they are incurred. the leased asset is not 
recorded in the balance sheet.

leasehold improvements
the cost of leasehold improvements are capitalised as 
an asset and depreciated over the remaining term of the 
lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements, 
whichever is the shorter. 

1.39 contRiButed capital

Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 
1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned 
Public Sector Entities and Financial Reporting Direction 
119A Contribution by Owners, appropriations for 
additions to the net asset base have been designated as 
contributed capital. other transfers that are in the nature 
of contributions to or distributions by owners that have 
been designated as contributed capital are also treated as 
contributed capital.

1.40  land and Buildings 
Revaluation ReseRve

the asset revaluation reserve is used to record 
increments and decrements on the revaluation of 
non-current assets.
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1.41  availaBle-foR-sale 
Revaluation ReseRve 

the available-for-sale revaluation reserve arises on the 
revaluation of the available-for-sale financial assets. 
where a revalued financial asset is sold that portion of the 
reserve which relates to that financial asset is effectively 
realised and is recognised in the Comprehensive 
operating statement. where a revalued financial asset 
is impaired that portion of the reserve, which relates to 
that financial asset, is recognised in the Comprehensive 
operating statement.

1.42  specific RestRicted puRpose funds

Barwon Health’s specific Restricted purpose Funds 
comprise funds for which Barwon Health exercises 
control over the use of those funds. separation of these 
funds from the operating Fund is required under Hospital 
Funding Guidelines and Barwon Health has no discretion 
to amend or vary the restriction and/or conditions 
underlying the funds received. 

1.43 commitments

Commitments for future expenditure include operating 
and capital commitments arising from contracts. these 
commitments are disclosed by way of a note (refer 
to note 25) at their nominal value and are inclusive of 
the Gst payable. In addition, where it is considered 
appropriate and provides additional relevant information 
to users, the net present values of significant individual 
projects are stated. these future expenditures cease to 
be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities 
are recognised on the balance sheet.

1.44  contingent assets and 
contingent liaBilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed 
by way of note and, if quantifiable, are measured at 
nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities are presented inclusive of Gst receivable or 
payable respectively.

1.45 goods and seRvices tax (gst)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of associated Gst, unless the Gst incurred is not 
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is 

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset 
or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the 
amount of Gst receivable or payable. the net amount 
of Gst recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority is included with other receivables or payables in 
the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. the Gst 
components of cash flows arising from investing or 
financing activities which are recoverable from, or 
payable to the taxation authority, are presented as an 
operating cash flow.

Commitments for expenditure and contingent assets 
and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

1.46 categoRy gRoups

Barwon Health has used the following category groups 
for reporting purposes for the current and previous 
financial years.

admitted patient services (admitted patients) 
Admitted patients comprises all recurrent health 
revenue/expenditure on admitted patient services, where 
services are delivered in public hospitals, or free standing 
day hospital facilities, or alcohol and drug treatment units 
or hospitals specialising in dental services, hearing and 
ophthalmic aids.

mental health services (mental health)
Mental Health comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on specialised mental health services (child 
and adolescent, general and adult, community and 
forensic) managed or funded by the state or territory 
health administrations, and includes: admitted patient 
services, outpatient services, community-based services, 
residential and ambulatory services. 

outpatient services (outpatients)
outpatients comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on public hospital type outpatient 
services, where services are delivered in public hospital 
outpatient clinics or freestanding day hospital facilities, 
or rehabilitation facilities, or alcohol and drug treatment 
units, or outpatient clinics specialising in ophthalmic 
palliative care.

note 1: statement of significant 
accounting policies

notes to the financial statements
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emergency department services (eds)
eDs comprises all recurrent health revenue/expenditure 
on emergency department services that are available 
free of charge to public patients. 

aged care
Aged Care comprises revenue/expenditure for Home and 
Community Care (HACC) programs, Allied Health, Aged 
Care Assessment and support services.

primary health
primary Health comprises revenue/expenditure for 
Community Health services including health promotion 
and counselling, physiotherapy, speech therapy, podiatry 
and occupational therapy.

Residential aged care including mental health (Rac 
incl. mental health)
RAC incl. Mental health referred to in the past as 
psychogeriatric residential services, comprises those 
Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care services 
in receipt of supplementary funding from Department of 
Health under the mental health program. It excludes all 
other residential services funded under the mental health 
program, such as mental health funded community care 
units (CCus) and secure extended care units (seCs).

other services excluded from australian health care 
agreement (ahca) (other)
others comprises revenue/expenditure for services 
not separately classified above, including: public Health 
services including laboratory testing, Blood Borne 
viruses / sexually transmitted Infections clinical services, 
Koori liaison officers, immunisation and screening 
services, Drugs services including drug withdrawal, 
counselling and the needle and syringe program, Dental 
Health services including general and specialist dental 
care, school dental services and clinical education, 
Disability services including aids and equipment and 
flexible support packages to people with a disability, 
Community Care programs including sexual assault 
support, early parenting services, parenting assessment 
and skills development, and various support services. 
Health and Community Initiatives also falls in this 
category group. 

1.47  investments in Joint opeRations

In respect of any interests in joint operations, Barwon 
Health recognises in the financial statements:

 › its assets, including its share of any assets 
held jointly;

 › any liabilities including its share of any assets 
held jointly;

 › its revenue from the sale of its share of the output 
from the joint operation;

 › its share of the revenue from the sale of the output 
by the operation; and

 › its expenses, including its share of any expenses 
incurred jointly.

1.48  neW accounting standaRds 
and inteRpRetations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations 
have been published that are not mandatory for the 
30 June 2016 reporting period. As at 30 June 2016, the 
following standards and interpretations had been issued 
but were not mandatory for financial years ending 30 
June 2016. Barwon Health has not and does not intend to 
adopt these standards early.



Barw
on HealtH 

annual report 2015-16

54

1.49

standard / 
interpretation summary

applicable 
for annual 
Reporting 
periods 
beginning on

impact on Barwon health financial 
statements

AAsB 9 
Financial 
Instruments

the key changes include the simplified 
requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial assets, a new 
hedging accounting model and a revised 
impairment loss model to recognise 
impairment losses earlier, as opposed 
to the current approach that recognises 
impairment only when incurred.

1 Jan 2018 the assessment has identified that the 
financial impact of available-for-sale 
(AFs) assets will now be reported through 
other comprehensive income (oCI) and no 
longer recycled to the profit and loss. 

while the preliminary assessment has 
not identified any material impact 
arising from AAsB 9, it will continue to be 
monitored and assessed.

AAsB 15 
Revenue from 
Contracts 
with 
Customers

the core principle of AAsB 15 requires an 
entity to recognise revenue when the 
entity satisfies a performance obligation 
by transferring a promised good or service 
to a customer.

1 Jan 2017

(exposure 
Draft 263 
– potential 
deferral to 1 
Jan 2018)

the changes in revenue recognition 
requirements in AAsB 15 may result 
in changes to the timing and amount 
of revenue recorded in the financial 
statements. the standard will also 
require additional disclosures on service 
revenue and contract modifications.

A potential impact will be the 
upfront recognition of revenue from 
arrangements that cover multiple 
reporting periods. Revenue that was 
deferred and amortised over a period 
may now need to be recognised 
immediately as a transitional adjustment 
against the opening returned earnings 
if there are no former performance 
obligations outstanding.

AAsB 2014 1 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
standards 
[part e 
Financial 
Instruments]

Amends various AAss to reflect the 
AAsB's decision to defer the mandatory 
application date of AAsB 9 to annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018 as a consequence of Chapter 
6 Hedge Accounting, and to amend 
reduced disclosure requirements.

1 Jan 2018 this amending standard will defer the 
application period of AAsB 9 to the 2018-
19 reporting period in accordance with the 
transition requirements.

AAsB 2014 4 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
standards – 
Clarification 
of Acceptable 
Methods of 
Depreciation 
and 
Amortisation 
[AAsB 116 & 
AAsB 138]

Amends AAsB 116 property, plant and 
equipment and AAsB 138 Intangible 
Assets to:

 › establish the principle for the basis of 
depreciation and amortisation as being 
the expected pattern of consumption of 
the future economic benefits of an asset;

 › prohibit the use of revenue based 
methods to calculate the depreciation 
or amortisation of an asset, tangible or 
intangible, because revenue generally 
reflects the pattern of economic benefits 
that are generated from operating the 
business, rather than the consumption 
through the use of the asset. 

1 Jan 2016 the assessment has indicated that 
there is no expected impact as the 
revenue-based method is not used for 
depreciation and amortisation.

note 1: statement of significant 
accounting policies

notes to the financial statements
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standard / 
interpretation summary

applicable 
for annual 
Reporting 
periods 
beginning on

impact on Barwon health financial 
statements

AAsB 2014 9 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
standards – 
equity Method 
in separate 
Financial 
statements 
[AAsB 1, 127 & 
128]

Amends AAsB 127 separate Financial 
statements to allow entities to use 
the equity method of accounting for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associates in their separate financial 
statements.

1 Jan 2016 the assessment indicates that there is 
no expected impact as the entity will 
continue to account for the  investments 
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates using the cost method 
as mandated if separate financial 
statements are presented in accordance 
with FRD 113A.

AAsB 2014 10 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
standards 
– sale or 
Contribution 
of Assets 
between an 
Investor and 
its Associate 
or Joint 
venture 
[AAsB 10 & 
AAsB 128]

AAsB 2014-10 amends AAsB 10 
Consolidated Financial statements and 
AAsB 128 Investments in Associates to 
ensure consistent treatment in dealing with 
the sale or contribution of assets between 
an investor and its associate or joint 
venture. the amendments require that:

 › a full gain or loss to be recognised 
by the investor when a transaction 
involves a business (whether it is 
housed in a subsidiary or not); and

 › a partial gain or loss to be recognised 
by the parent when a transaction 
involves assets that do not constitute 
a business, even if these assets are 
housed in a subsidiary.

1 Jan 2016 the assessment has indicated that there 
is limited impact, as the revisions to AAsB 
10 and AAsB 128 are guidance in nature.

AAsB 2015 6 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
standards 
– extending 
Related party 
Disclosures to 
not-for-profit 
public sector 
entities [AAsB 
10, AAsB 124 & 
AAsB 1049]

the Amendments extend the scope of 
AAsB 124 Related party Disclosures to not-
for-profit public sector entities.  A guidance 
has been included to assist the application 
of the standard by not-for-profit public 
sector entities.

1 Jan 2016 the amending standard will result in 
extended disclosures on the entity’s key 
management personnel (KMp), and the 
related party transactions.

AAsB 16 
leases

the key changes introduced by AAsB 16 
include the recognition of most operating 
leases (which are currently not recognised) 
on balance sheet.

1 Jan 2019 the assessment has indicated that there 
is limited impact, as Barwon Health holds 
a limited number of operating leases and 
no finance leases. 

where Barwon Health maintains operating 
leases (that are not considered short term) 
as a lessor, a lease liability of the operating 
lease contract and an associated ‘right to 
use’ asset will be recognised on Barwon 
Health’s balance sheet.
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2016 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

Government Grants  364,715  25,662  25,636 36,505 27,568  2,437  27,012  2,318  511,853 

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health and Human services  1,174  91  79  117  100  9  83  -  1,653 

patient and Resident Fees 5  37,361  5,523  1,480  2,150  6,914  543  755  3,209  57,935 

private practice Fees  132  -  -  -  -  -  -  50  182 

Recoupment from private practice for use of Hospital Facilities  2,510  55  1  1  1  -  2  5  2,575 

Business units and specific purpose Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  27,633  27,633 

other Revenue from operating Activities  6,687  597  601  2,185  403  136  1,378  839  12,826 

total Revenue from operating activities 412,579 31,928 27,797 40,958 34,986 3,125 29,230 34,054 614,657

Interest  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,941  1,941 

Dividends and profit on sale of Available-for-sale Investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,092  1,092 

total Revenue from non-operating activities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    3,033  3,033 

Capital purpose Income  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 31,536 31,536

Donations and Bequests  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2,850 2,850

net Gain/(loss) from Disposal of non-Current Assets 6  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 338 338

total capital purpose income  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    34,724  34,724 

net Gain/(loss) on Revaluation of non-Current Assets 15  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 530 530

total other Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  530  530 

total Revenue fRom opeRations 412,579 31,928 27,797 40,958 34,986 3,125 29,230 72,341 652,944

2015 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

Government Grants  329,476  25,254  29,457  35,389  26,839  15,153  13,560  2,212  477,340 

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health and Human services  2,623  151  175  379  228  146  93  24  3,819 

patient and Resident Fees 5  35,872  5,517  734  460  7,964  576  104  4,260  55,487 

private practice Fees  135  -  -  -  -  -  -  12  147 

Recoupment from private practice for use of Hospital Facilities  2,692  74  -  -  -  -  -  -  2,766 

Business units and specific purpose Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 23,951 23,951

other Revenue from operating Activities  7,469  525  600  3,014  473  404  1,170  500  14,155 

total Revenue from operating activities 378,267 31,521 30,966 39,242 35,504 16,279 14,927 30,959 577,665

Interest  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2,899 2,899

Dividends and profit on sale of Available-for-sale Investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 3,631 3,631

total Revenue from non-operating activities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    6,530  6,530 

Capital purpose Income  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 47,966 47,966

Donations and Bequests  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 3,929 3,929

net Gain/(loss) on Disposal of non-Current Assets 6  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 415 415

total capital purpose income  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    52,310  52,310 

net Gain/(loss) on Revaluation of non-Current Assets 15  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  431  431 

total other Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  431  431 

total Revenue fRom opeRations 378,267 31,521 30,966 39,242 35,504 16,279 14,927 90,230 636,936

note 2: analysis of revenue by source
notes to the financial statements
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2016 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

Government Grants  364,715  25,662  25,636 36,505 27,568  2,437  27,012  2,318  511,853 

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health and Human services  1,174  91  79  117  100  9  83  -  1,653 

patient and Resident Fees 5  37,361  5,523  1,480  2,150  6,914  543  755  3,209  57,935 

private practice Fees  132  -  -  -  -  -  -  50  182 

Recoupment from private practice for use of Hospital Facilities  2,510  55  1  1  1  -  2  5  2,575 

Business units and specific purpose Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  27,633  27,633 

other Revenue from operating Activities  6,687  597  601  2,185  403  136  1,378  839  12,826 

total Revenue from operating activities 412,579 31,928 27,797 40,958 34,986 3,125 29,230 34,054 614,657

Interest  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,941  1,941 

Dividends and profit on sale of Available-for-sale Investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,092  1,092 

total Revenue from non-operating activities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    3,033  3,033 

Capital purpose Income  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 31,536 31,536

Donations and Bequests  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2,850 2,850

net Gain/(loss) from Disposal of non-Current Assets 6  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 338 338

total capital purpose income  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    34,724  34,724 

net Gain/(loss) on Revaluation of non-Current Assets 15  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 530 530

total other Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  530  530 

total Revenue fRom opeRations 412,579 31,928 27,797 40,958 34,986 3,125 29,230 72,341 652,944

2015 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

Government Grants  329,476  25,254  29,457  35,389  26,839  15,153  13,560  2,212  477,340 

Indirect Contributions by Department of Health and Human services  2,623  151  175  379  228  146  93  24  3,819 

patient and Resident Fees 5  35,872  5,517  734  460  7,964  576  104  4,260  55,487 

private practice Fees  135  -  -  -  -  -  -  12  147 

Recoupment from private practice for use of Hospital Facilities  2,692  74  -  -  -  -  -  -  2,766 

Business units and specific purpose Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 23,951 23,951

other Revenue from operating Activities  7,469  525  600  3,014  473  404  1,170  500  14,155 

total Revenue from operating activities 378,267 31,521 30,966 39,242 35,504 16,279 14,927 30,959 577,665

Interest  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 2,899 2,899

Dividends and profit on sale of Available-for-sale Investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 3,631 3,631

total Revenue from non-operating activities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    6,530  6,530 

Capital purpose Income  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 47,966 47,966

Donations and Bequests  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 3,929 3,929

net Gain/(loss) on Disposal of non-Current Assets 6  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 415 415

total capital purpose income  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    52,310  52,310 

net Gain/(loss) on Revaluation of non-Current Assets 15  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  431  431 

total other Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  431  431 

total Revenue fRom opeRations 378,267 31,521 30,966 39,242 35,504 16,279 14,927 90,230 636,936
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2016 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

employee Benefits 307,142 17,493 20,252 40,876 25,226 15,538 9,969 11,541 448,037

non-salary labour Costs 7,819 145 229 692 772 121 100 25 9,903

supplies, Consumables and purchased services 85,148 3,692 5,460 5,511 4,348 1,838 1,864 247 108,108

other expenses 40,614 2,224 2,235 4,337 2,783 1,419 1,775 7,092 62,479

total expenditure from operating activities 440,723 23,554 28,176 51,416 33,129 18,916 13,708 18,905 628,527

expenditure for Capital purposes 572  24  38  83  33  19  16 2,333 3,118

specific expenditure  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Depreciation and Amortisation 4 31,303 1,676 2,006 3,661 2,357 1,346 975  -    43,324 

total other expenses  31,875  1,700  2,044  3,744  2,390  1,365  991  2,333  46,442 

total expenses from ordinary activities 472,598 25,254 30,220 55,160 35,519 20,281 14,699 21,238 674,969

2015 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

employee Benefits 286,278 16,517 19,104 41,353 24,866 15,880 10,186 11,664 425,848

non-salary labour Costs 7,036 5 78 294 630 2,154 11 86 10,294

supplies, Consumables and purchased services 67,757 2,152 4,533 2,009 2,158 569 1,314 9,078 89,570

other expenses 36,295 2,127 1,877 3,431 1,857 962 2,711 7,895 57,155

total expenditure from operating activities 397,366 20,801 25,592 47,087 29,511 19,565 14,222 28,723 582,867

expenditure for capital purposes  -  8  18  115  18  11  15 1,159 1,344

specific expenditure  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,080 1,080

Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 205 205

Depreciation and Amortisation 4 27,855 2,135 2,490 2,992 2,269 1,281 1,146 780 40,948

total other expenses  27,855  2,143  2,508  3,107  2,287  1,292  1,161  3,224  43,577 

total expenses from ordinary activities 425,221 22,944 28,100 50,194 31,798 20,857 15,383 31,947 626,444

note 3: analysis of expenses by source
notes to the financial statements
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2016 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

employee Benefits 307,142 17,493 20,252 40,876 25,226 15,538 9,969 11,541 448,037

non-salary labour Costs 7,819 145 229 692 772 121 100 25 9,903

supplies, Consumables and purchased services 85,148 3,692 5,460 5,511 4,348 1,838 1,864 247 108,108

other expenses 40,614 2,224 2,235 4,337 2,783 1,419 1,775 7,092 62,479

total expenditure from operating activities 440,723 23,554 28,176 51,416 33,129 18,916 13,708 18,905 628,527

expenditure for Capital purposes 572  24  38  83  33  19  16 2,333 3,118

specific expenditure  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Depreciation and Amortisation 4 31,303 1,676 2,006 3,661 2,357 1,346 975  -    43,324 

total other expenses  31,875  1,700  2,044  3,744  2,390  1,365  991  2,333  46,442 

total expenses from ordinary activities 472,598 25,254 30,220 55,160 35,519 20,281 14,699 21,238 674,969

2015 note
admitted patients 

$’000
non-admitted 

$’000
eds 

$’000
mental health 

$’000
Rac incl. mental health 

$’000
aged care 

$’000
primary health 

$’000
other 
$’000

total 
$’000

consolidated

employee Benefits 286,278 16,517 19,104 41,353 24,866 15,880 10,186 11,664 425,848

non-salary labour Costs 7,036 5 78 294 630 2,154 11 86 10,294

supplies, Consumables and purchased services 67,757 2,152 4,533 2,009 2,158 569 1,314 9,078 89,570

other expenses 36,295 2,127 1,877 3,431 1,857 962 2,711 7,895 57,155

total expenditure from operating activities 397,366 20,801 25,592 47,087 29,511 19,565 14,222 28,723 582,867

expenditure for capital purposes  -  8  18  115  18  11  15 1,159 1,344

specific expenditure  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,080 1,080

Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 205 205

Depreciation and Amortisation 4 27,855 2,135 2,490 2,992 2,269 1,281 1,146 780 40,948

total other expenses  27,855  2,143  2,508  3,107  2,287  1,292  1,161  3,224  43,577 

total expenses from ordinary activities 425,221 22,944 28,100 50,194 31,798 20,857 15,383 31,947 626,444
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

depreciation

Building and leasehold  33,071 30,985

plant and equipment  4,021 3,566

Medical equipment  5,302 4,994

Furniture and Fittings  176 65

linen  -   600

total depreciation  42,570 40,210

Amortisation

Intangible Assets  754 738

total Amortisation  754 738

total depreciation and amortisation  43,324 40,948

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

patient fees Raised

Acute  39,171 38,186

subacute  7,218 7,182

other  5,477 4,116

Resident fees Raised

Geriatric  5,297 5,289

Mental Health  772 714

total  57,935 55,487

note 4: Depreciation and amortisation

note 5: Patient and Resident fees

notes to the financial statements
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

 - Motor vehicles 182 243

 - plant and equipment  153  - 

 - Medical equipment  -  - 

 - Building  -  - 

total proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  335 243

less:  Written down value of property, plant and equipment disposed

 - Motor vehicles  - 38

 - plant and equipment  -  - 

 - Medical equipment  246  - 

 - Building  -  - 

total Written down value of property, plant and equipment disposed  246 38

net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment disposed 89  205 

proceeds from disposal of property held-for-sale

 - Building  -  2,187 

 - land  1,429  1,593 

total proceeds from disposal of property held-for-sale  1,429 3,780

less:  Written down value of property held-for-sale

 - Building  1,180  1,480 

 - land  -  2,090 

total Written down value of property held-for-sale  1,180 3,570

net gain on disposal of property held-for-sale  249  210 

proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

 - Intangible Assets  -  - 

total proceeds from disposal of intangible assets  -  - 

less:  Written down value of intangible assets

 - Intangible Assets  -  - 

total Written down value of intangible assets  -  - 

net loss on disposal of intangible assets  -  - 

total net (loss) / gain on disposal of non-financial assets  338  415 

note 6: net gain/(loss) on disposal 
of non-financial assets
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Revenue expense

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

commercial activities

pharmacy services  15,423  12,733  11,180  9,369 

laundry  920  -    4,490  2,060 

Research  3,272  3,091  2,289  2,070 

staff Care  153  144  1,055  1,033 

laboratory Medicine  1,025  1,103  925  1,038 

Chronic Disease Management project  112  645  128  453 

property  1,891  2,013  1,372  1,334 

salary packaging Charges  2,072  2,016  491  454 

other  3,445  2,207  746  -   

total Business unit and specific purpose funds  28,313  23,952  22,676  17,811 

other activities

Recoupment from private practice Arrangements  3,042  2,766  2,827  2,387 

Discontinued operations  -    3,175  -    4,752 

total  31,355  29,893  25,503  24,950 

note 7: analysis of revenue and expenses 
by internally managed and restricted 
specific purpose funds

notes to the financial statements

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

Finance Charges on Finance leases  -    -   

total  -    -   

note 8: Finance costs
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

cuRRent

contractual

patient Fees 8,563 6,424

sundry Debtors 16,072 6,175

less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts (390) (367)

Accrued Investment Income 1,002 781

Accrued Revenue - other 6,001 4,404

prepayments 9,266 816

40,514 18,233

statutory

Gst Receivable 973 1,327

Accrued Revenue - Department of Health / Department of Health and 
Human services

 -    2,243 

total cuRRent ReceivaBles 41,487 21,803

non cuRRent

statutory

long service leave - Department of Health / Department of Health and 
Human services

22,127 20,873

total non-cuRRent ReceivaBles 22,127 20,873

total  ReceivaBles 63,614 42,676

(a)  movement in allowance for patient fee doubtful debts:

Balance at beginning of year (367) (387)

Amounts written off during year 221 485

(Increase) / decrease in allowance recognised in net result (244) (465)

Balance at end of the year (390) (367)

(b)      ageing analysis of receivables.

please refer to note 23 for the ageing analysis of receivables. 

(c)      nature and extent of risk arising from receivables.

please refer to note 23 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from 
receivables. 

note 9: Receivables
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opearating fund capital fund total

note

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

current

- Australian Dollar term Deposits > 3 
months

 46 46  -    -    46 46

- Australian Dollar term Deposits < 3 
months

 17,909  -    -    -    17,909  -   

- Fixed Bonds and Floating Rate notes  -   4,114 2,633 1,669  2,633 5,783

total cuRRent 17,955 4,160 2,633 1,669  20,588 5,829

non-current

- equities at Fair value  1,127 2,455  -    -    1,127 2,455

- Fixed Bonds and Floating Rate notes 1,716 23,878 7,667 4,809  9,382 28,687

total non-cuRRent 2,843 26,333 7,667 4,809  10,509 31,142

total 23 (b)  20,798  30,493  10,300  6,478  31,097  36,971 

Represented by:

Health service Investments  20,797  30,493 

Monies Held in trust

- Refundable entrance Fees  10,300  6,478 

total  31,097  36,971 

(a) ageing analysis of investments - term deposits.
please refer to note 23 for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets.

(b) nature and extent of risk arising from investments - term deposits.
please refer to note 23 for the nature and extent of creditor risk arising from investments - term deposits.

note 10: Investments and 
other financial assets

notes to the financial statements

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

pharmaceuticals at Cost  2,238 1,222

Medical and surgical lines at Cost 1,767 2,288

Bulk store at Cost 242 188

total inventoRies  4,247 3,698

note 11: Inventories
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assets classified as held-for-sale

(a) assets held-foR-sale

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

land and Buildings - held-for-sale at fair value

land  975  1,905 

Buildings  575  825 

total land and Building assets classified as held-for-sale  1,550  2,730 

plant and equipment – held-for-sale at fair value

other equipment  158  376 

plant  33  61 

It equipment  2  2 

total plant and equipment assets classified as held-for-sale  193  439 

total non-financial physical assets classified as held-for-sale  1,743  3,169 

(B) faiR value measuRement of non-financial physical assets held-foR-sale

carrying amount fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

2016 
$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

land  975  -  975  - 

Buildings  575  -  575  - 

other equipment  158  -    -  158 

plant  33  -    -  33 

It equipment  2  -    -  2 

total property held-for-sale  1,743  -  1,550  193 

carrying amount fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

2015 
$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

land  1,905  -    1,905  - 

Buildings  825  -    825  - 

other equipment  376  -    -  376 

plant  61  -    -  61 

It equipment  2  -    -  2 

total property held-for-sale  3,169  -  2,730  439 

(1) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy (note 1)

land and buildings are valued using the market approach. 
under this valuation method, the assets are compared 
to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable 
assets which are considered to have nominal or no added 
improvement value.

For land and buildings, an independent valuation was 
performed by independent valuers the valuer-General 
victoria (vGv) to determine the fair value using the market 
approach. valuation of the assets was determined by 

analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, 
topography, location and other relevant factors specific 
to the asset being valued. An appropriate rate per square 
metre has been applied to the subject asset. the effective 
date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

to the extent that land and buildings do not contain 
significant, unobservable adjustments, these assets are 
classified as level 2 under the market approach.



Barw
on HealtH 

annual report 2015-16

66

(a) gRoss caRRying amount as at 30 June 2016

2016 at cost / valuation

accumulated 
depreciation / 
amortisation net assets 2016

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000

land and Buildings

at fair value

land at Revaluation on 30 June 2014 37,865  -  37,865 

Crown land at Revaluation on 30 June 2014 8,730  -  8,730 

Buildings at Revaluation on 30 June 2014 899,336 418,011  481,325 

 945,931  418,011  527,920 

Buildings under construction at cost 9,567  -  9,567 

leasehold improvements at fair value 1,514 741  773 

plant and equipment at fair value

- plant 8,895 4,300  4,595 

- Motor vehicles 5,989 4,156  1,833 

- other 28,664 18,724  9,940 

 43,548  27,180  16,368 

medical equipment at fair value 69,474 47,034  22,440 

furniture and fittings at fair value 2,838 586  2,252 

linen at fair value  65  -  65 

total property, plant and equipment  1,072,937  493,552  579,385 

please refer to note 1.31 for more details on revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

note 13: Property, plant  
and equipment 

notes to the financial statements
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(a) gRoss caRRying amount as at 30 June 2015

2015 at cost / valuation

accumulated 
depreciation / 
amortisation net assets 2015

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000

land and Buildings

at fair value

land at Revaluation on 30 June 2014 39,465  - 39,465

Crown land at Revaluation on 30 June 2014 8,730  - 8,730

Buildings at Revaluation on 30 June 2014 869,266 385,155 484,111

917,461 385,155 532,306

Buildings under construction at cost 12,983  - 12,983

leasehold improvements at fair value 1,513 525 988

plant and equipment at fair value

- plant 8,193 3,514 4,679

- Motor vehicles 5,992 3,660 2,332

- other 28,134 16,079 12,055

42,319 23,253 19,066

medical equipment at fair value 63,767 41,867 21,900

furniture and fittings at fair value 1,605 410 1,195

linen at fair value  -  -  - 

total property, plant and equipment 1,039,648 451,210 588,439
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[continued]

note 13: Property, plant  
and equipment 

notes to the financial statements

(B) Reconciliations of the caRRying amounts of each class of asset

2016 land

Buildings and 
leasehold 

improvements plant and equipment medical equipment furniture and fittings linen total

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2015 48,195 498,081 19,068 21,900 1,195  - 588,439

work in progress  - (3,416) (1,692)  -  -  - (5,108)

Additions  - 30,070 3,086 6,341 1,233  65 40,795

Revaluation Increment/Decrement  - -  -  -  -  -  - 

Asset write off  -  -  -  -  -  - -

Classified as property Held-for-sale  -  - -  -  -  - -

transfers (1,600)  -  -  -  -    - (1,600)

Disposals  -  - (72) (499)  -  - (571)

Depreciation and Amortisation  - (33,071) (4,021) (5,302) (176)  - (42,570)

Balance at 30 June 2016 46,595 491,664 16,369 22,440 2,252 65 579,385

2015 land

Buildings and 
leasehold 

improvements plant and equipment medical equipment furniture and fittings linen total

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2014 48,195 467,900 17,023 18,449 180 991 552,738

work in progress  - (30,108)  993  -  -  - (29,115)

Additions  - 91,275 5,094 8,445 1,080  - 105,894

Revaluation Increment/Decrement  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Asset write off  -  -  -  -  - (391) (391)

Classified as property Held-for-sale  -  - (439)  -  - - (439)

Disposals  -  - (38)  -  -  - (38)

Depreciation and Amortisation  - (30,985) (3,566) (4,994) (65) (600) (40,210)

Balance at 30 June 2015 48,195 498,081 19,068 21,900 1,195  - 588,439

land and Buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of Barwon Health’s property, plant and equipment was performed by the valuer-General victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. the valuation, which conforms to Australian valuation standards, was determined by 
reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. the valuation was based on independent assessments.

the effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
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(B) Reconciliations of the caRRying amounts of each class of asset

2016 land

Buildings and 
leasehold 

improvements plant and equipment medical equipment furniture and fittings linen total

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2015 48,195 498,081 19,068 21,900 1,195  - 588,439

work in progress  - (3,416) (1,692)  -  -  - (5,108)

Additions  - 30,070 3,086 6,341 1,233  65 40,795

Revaluation Increment/Decrement  - -  -  -  -  -  - 

Asset write off  -  -  -  -  -  - -

Classified as property Held-for-sale  -  - -  -  -  - -

transfers (1,600)  -  -  -  -    - (1,600)

Disposals  -  - (72) (499)  -  - (571)

Depreciation and Amortisation  - (33,071) (4,021) (5,302) (176)  - (42,570)

Balance at 30 June 2016 46,595 491,664 16,369 22,440 2,252 65 579,385

2015 land

Buildings and 
leasehold 

improvements plant and equipment medical equipment furniture and fittings linen total

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2014 48,195 467,900 17,023 18,449 180 991 552,738

work in progress  - (30,108)  993  -  -  - (29,115)

Additions  - 91,275 5,094 8,445 1,080  - 105,894

Revaluation Increment/Decrement  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Asset write off  -  -  -  -  - (391) (391)

Classified as property Held-for-sale  -  - (439)  -  - - (439)

Disposals  -  - (38)  -  -  - (38)

Depreciation and Amortisation  - (30,985) (3,566) (4,994) (65) (600) (40,210)

Balance at 30 June 2015 48,195 498,081 19,068 21,900 1,195  - 588,439

land and Buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of Barwon Health’s property, plant and equipment was performed by the valuer-General victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. the valuation, which conforms to Australian valuation standards, was determined by 
reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. the valuation was based on independent assessments.

the effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
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(c) faiR value measuRement hieRaRchy foR assets

consolidated 
carrying 

amount as at 
30 June 2016 fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

land and Buildings at fair value

non-specialised land  18,412  -  18,412  - 

specialised land  28,183  -  -  28,183 

non-specialised Buildings  838  -  838  - 

specialised Buildings  480,487  -  -  480,487 

leasehold Improvements  773  -  773  - 

total land and Buildings at fair value  528,693  -  20,023  508,670 

plant and equipment at fair value

- plant at Depreciated Replacement Cost  4,595  -  4,595  - 

- Motor vehicles at Depreciated 
Replacement Cost

 1,833  -  1,833  - 

- other at Depreciated Replacement Cost  9,940  -  9,940  - 

total plant and equipment at fair value  16,368  -  16,368  - 

medical equipment at fair value  22,440  -  20,409  2,031 

furniture and fittings at fair value  2,252  -  2,252  - 

linen at fair value  65  -  65  - 

 569,818  -  59,114  510,701 

(1) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see note 1.2. 
there have been no transfers between levels during the period.

consolidated 
carrying 

amount as at 
30 June 2015 fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

land and Buildings at fair value

non-specialised land  20,012  -  20,012  - 

specialised land  28,183  -  -  28,183 

non-specialised Buildings  811  -  811  - 

specialised Buildings  483,299  -  -  483,299 

Buildings under Construction  12,983  -  6,541  6,442 

leasehold Improvements  989  -  989  - 

[continued]

note 13: Property, plant  
and equipment 

notes to the financial statements
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consolidated 
carrying 

amount as at 
30 June 2015 fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

total land and Buildings at fair value  546,278  -  28,354  517,924 

plant and equipment at fair value

- plant at Depreciated Replacement Cost  4,679  -  4,679  - 

- Motor vehicles at Depreciated 
Replacement Cost

 2,332  -  2,332  - 

- other at Depreciated Replacement Cost  12,056  -  12,056  - 

total plant and equipment at fair value  19,067  -  19,067  - 

medical equipment at fair value  21,900  -  18,935  2,965 

furniture and fittings at fair value  1,195  -  1,195  - 

linen at fair value  -  -  -  - 

 588,440  -  67,551  520,889 

(1) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see note 1.2. 
there have been no transfers between levels during the period.

non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings
non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are 
valued using the market approach. under this valuation 
method, the assets are compared to recent comparable 
sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered 
to have nominal or no added improvement value.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an 
independent valuation was performed by independent 
valuers the valuer-General victoria (vGv) to determine 
the fair value using the market approach. valuation of the 
assets was determined by analysing comparable sales 
and allowing for share, size, topography, location and 
other relevant factors specific to the asset being valued. 
An appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to 
the subject asset. the effective date of the valuation is 30 
June 2014.

to the extent that non-specialised land and non-
specialised buildings do not contain significant, 
unobservable adjustments, these assets are classified as 
level 2 under the market approach.

specialised land and specialised buildings
the market approach is also used for specialised land 
and specialised buildings although is adjusted for the 
community service obligation (Cso) to reflect the 
specialised nature of the assets being valued.  

specialised assets contain significant, unobservable 
adjustments; therefore these assets are 
classified as level 3 under the market based direct 
comparison approach.

the Cso adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s 
assessment of the impact of restrictions associated 
with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable 
to market participants. this approach is in light of the 
highest and best use consideration required for fair value 
measurement, and takes into account the use of the 
asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and 
financially feasible. As adjustments of Cso are considered 
as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land 
would be classified as level 3 assets. For Barwon Health, 
the depreciated replacement cost method is used for 
the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the 
associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments 
are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in 
nature, specialised buildings are classified as level 3 for 
fair value measurements.

An independent valuation of Barwon Health’s specialised 
land and specialised buildings was performed by the 
valuer-General victoria. the valuation was performed 
using the market approach adjusted for Cso. the 
effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.
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vehicles
Barwon Health acquires new vehicles and at times 
disposes of them before completion of their economic 
life. the process of acquisition, use and disposal in the 
market is managed by Barwon Health who set relevant 
depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption 
of the vehicles. As a result, it has been assessed that the 
fair value of these vehicles does not differ materially from 
the carrying value (depreciated cost).

plant and equipment
plant and equipment is held at carrying value (depreciated 
cost). when plant and equipment is specialised in use, 

such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going 
concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to 
estimate the fair value. As there is market evidence that 
current replacement costs are not significantly different 
from the original acquisition cost, it has been assessed 
that depreciated replacement cost will not be materially 
different from the existing carrying value. 

there were no changes in valuation techniques 
throughout the period to 30 June 2016. 

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is 
considered the highest and best use.

(d) Reconciliation of level 3 faiR value

2016 specialised land specialised Buildings medical equipment

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000

opening Balance  28,183  483,299  2,965 

additions / (capitalisation)  -  29,996  - 

transfers in (out) of level 3  -  -  - 

Gains or losses recognised in net result

- Depreciation  -  (32,808)  (934)

subtotal  28,183  480,487  2,031 

Items recognised in other comprehensive income

- Revaluation  -  -  - 

closing Balance  28,183  480,487  2,031 

2015 specialised land specialised Buildings medical equipment

consolidated $’000 $’000 $’000

opening Balance  28,183  423,001  4,260 

additions / (capitalisation)  -  90,803  - 

Gains or losses recognised in net result

- Depreciation  -  (30,505)  (1,295)

subtotal  -  (30,505)  (1,295)

Items recognised in other comprehensive income

- Revaluation  -  -  - 

closing Balance  28,183  483,299  2,965 

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see note 1.2.

[continued]

note 13: Property, plant  
and equipment 

notes to the financial statements
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(e) descRiption of significant unoBseRvaBle inputs to level 3 valuations:

valuation technique
significant 
unobservable inputs

Range (weighted 
average)

sensitivity of fair 
value measurement to 
changes in significant 
unobservable inputs

specialised land

 Market approach  Community service 
obligation (Cso) 
adjustment 

2016: 20% 
2015: 20%

 A significant 
increase or 
decrease in the 
Cso adjustment 
would result in a 
significantly lower 
(higher) fair value.

specialised buildings

 Depreciated 
replacement cost 

 Direct cost per 
square metre 

2016: $500 - $4,300/
m2 ($1,900/m2) 
2015: $500 - $4,300/
m2 ($1,900/m2)

 A significant 
increase or 
decrease in direct 
cost per square 
meter adjustment 
would result in a 
significantly higher 
or lower fair value.

 useful life of 
specialised buildings 

2016: 5-51 years (30 
years) 
2015: 5-51 years (23 
years)

 A significant 
increase or decrease 
in the estimated 
useful life of the 
asset would result in 
a significantly higher 
or lower valuation.

medical equipment at fair value

 Depreciated 
replacement cost 

 useful life of medical 
equipment 

2016: 7-10 years (8 
years) 
2015: 7-10 years (8 
years)

 Increase (decrease) 
in useful life 
would result in a 
significantly higher 
(lower) fair value.

the significant unobservable inputs remain unchanged in 2016.
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

Intangible Assets 1,770 1,954

total intangible assets 1,770 1,954

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and the end of the previous and current 
financial year:

Reconciliation of movement in intangible assets

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,954  1,083 

Reclass of Assets  -    - 

Additions 570 1,609

Disposals  -    - 

Amortisation (754) (738)

Balance at end of financial year 1,770 1,954

total intangible assets 1,770 1,954

note 14: Intangible assets
notes to the financial statements
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(a) movements in caRRying value foR investment pRopeRties as at 30 June 2016

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

Balance at Beginning of period 13,028 12,598

net Gain from fair value adjustment 530 430

transfer from property, plant & equipment 1,600  - 

Balance at the end of period 15,158 13,028

Investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2016 by the victorian valuer General’s office, to determine the fair 
value of the properties.

Rental income from Investment properties for the year was $1,143,016 (2015: $628,466). Related operating expenses 
were $13,700 (2015: $16,235).

(B) faiR value measuRement hieRaRchy foR investment pRopeRties as at 30 June 2016

consolidated 
carrying 

amount as at 
30 June 2016 fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

investment properties  15,158  -  15,158  - 

 15,158  -  15,158  - 

consolidated 
carrying 

amount as at 
30 June 2015 fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

$’000 level 1 (1) level 2 (1) level 3 (1)

investment properties  13,028  -  12,358  670 

 13,028  -  12,358  670 

(1) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see note 1.2.

there have been no transfers between levels during the 
period. there were no changes in valuation techniques 
throughout the period to 30 June 2016.

For investment properties measured at fair value, the 
current use of the asset is considered the highest and 
best use.

the fair value of Barwon Health’s investment properties 
at 30 June 2016 have been arrived on the basis of an 
independent valuation carried out by independent valuers 
the valuer-General victoria (vGv). this valuation was 
performed in the comparative financial year. 

the valuation was determined by reference to market 
evidence of transaction process for similar properties with 
no significant unobservable adjustments, in the same 
location and condition and subject to similar lease and 
other contracts.

If there is no market based evidence of fair value because 
of the specialised nature of the item of the investment 
property and the item is rarely sold, except as part of a 
continuing business, the fair value is established using a 
depreciated replacement cost approach. Further details of 
significant unobservable inputs relating to level 3 land and 
buildings are disclosed in note 13 (e).   
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

current

contractual

trade Creditors  17,315 5,804

Accrued expenses  15,478 6,869

Accrued expense - Department of Health and Human services  129  - 

Australian taxation office  2,248 1,291

superannuation  96 3,947

salary packaging  1,207 5,127

other - payables  3,115 3,903

total payables  39,588 26,941

(a) matuRity analysis of payaBles.

please refer to note 23 for the ageing analysis of payables.

(B) natuRe and extent of RisK aRising 
fRom payaBles.

please refer to note 23 for the nature and extent of risks 
arising from payables.

notes to the financial statements

note

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

current

contractual

Refundable entrance Fees  9,951 7,237

Residential patient Monies held in trust  788 868

total monies held in trust  10,739 8,105

total monies held in trust 

Represented by the following assets:

Cash held - monies held in trust 22  439 1,627

Investments and other financial assets 10  10,300 6,478

total monies held in trust  10,739 8,105

note 17: Monies held in trust
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note

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

current

lease liabilities 25  -  - 

total current  -  - 

total interest Bearing liabilities 25  -  - 

Barwon Health has no unsecured Finance leases for 
Motor vehicles at 30 June 2016. 

(a) matuRity analysis of inteRest 
BeaRing liaBilities.

please refer to note 23 for the ageing analysis of interest 
bearing liabilities.

(B) natuRe and extent of RisK aRising 
fRom inteRest BeaRing liaBilities.

please refer to note 23 for the nature and extent of risks 
arising from interest bearing liabilities.

(c) defaults and BReaches.

During the current and prior year, there were no defaults 
and breaches of any of the loans.   
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on-costs provisions

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

current provisions

employee Benefits

Annual leave (note 19 (a))

- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 26,806 25,582

- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (present value) 4,285 4,067

long service leave (note 19 (b))

- unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 21,175 20,673

- unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (present value) 24,585 23,553

Accrued salaries and wages 11,608 7,165

Accrued Days off 699 715

 89,158 81,755

provisions related to employee benefit on-costs

- Annual leave 3,280 3,155

- unconditional long service leave entitlements 4,828 4,710

- Accrued Days off 74 78

 8,182 7,943

total current provisions  97,340 89,698

non-current provisions

- Conditional long service leave entitlements (present value) 18,573 16,726

- employee benefit on-costs for long service leave 1,960 1,781

total non-current provisions  20,533 18,507

total provisions  117,873 108,205

a) employee Benefits and Related on-costs

current employee Benefits and Related on-costs

unconditional Annual leave  34,372 32,803

unconditional long service leave entitlements  50,587 48,936

Accrued salaries and wages  11,608 7,165

Accrued Days off  773 793

non-current employee Benefits and Related on-costs

Conditional long service leave entitlements  20,533 18,507

total employee Benefits and Related on-costs  117,874 108,205

B) movement in long seRvice leave 
Balance at start of year 67,443 61,107

provision made during the year 11,541 13,212

settlement made during the year (7,864) (6,876)

Balance at end of year 71,120 67,443

notes to the financial statements
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provision for Annual leave is calculated as the amount 
which has been accrued by employees over the year, 
using remuneration rates which are expected to apply 
when the obligation is settled.

provision for long service leave is calculated using a 
4.125% per annum projected weighted average increase in 

wages and salary rates over a period of 20 years.  present 
values are calculated using interest rates based on 
government securities, as advised by the Department of 
treasury and Finance.

on-costs are based on a superannuation rate of 9.5% and 
workcover rate of 1.05% during 2015-16.  

note 20: superannuation

employees of Barwon Health are entitled to receive 
superannuation benefits and Barwon Health contributes 
to both defined benefits and defined contribution plans. 
the defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years 
of service and final average salary.

Barwon Health does not recognise any defined benefit 
liability in respect of the plans because the entity has 
no legal or contractive obligation to pay future benefits 

relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay 
superannuation contributions as they fall due.

However superannuation contributions paid or payable 
for the reporting period are included as part of employee 
benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of 
Barwon Health. the name, details and amounts expensed 
in relation to the major employee superannuation funds 
and contributions made by Barwon Health are as follows:

paid contribution for the year
contribution  

outstanding at year end

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

defined contribution plans:

- Health super  21,703  19,851  -  2,666 

- Hesta  11,602  9,241  -  1,191 

- other compliant superannuation funds as 
selected by employee

 1,329  1,180  -  18 

defined benefit plans:

- Health super  588  738  96  72 

- Gso  185  205  -  - 

total  35,407 31,215  96 3,947
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

a) ReseRves

land Revaluation Reserve

Balance at start of year 36,733 36,733

Movements  -    -   

Balance at end of year  36,733 36,733

Building Revaluation Reserve

Balance at start of year 234,565 234,565

Movements  -    -   

Balance at end of year  234,565 234,565

available for sale Revaluation Reserve

Balance at start of year 130 3,597

Movement for sale of AFs Investments (1,230) (2,917)

valuation Gain recognised 1,013 (755)

Impairment of Financial Assets  -   205

Balance at end of year (87) 130

Restricted specific purpose Reserve

Balance at start of year 11,180 10,418

transfer (to)/from Accumulated surplus/(Deficit) 460 763

Balance at end of year  11,640 11,180

internally managed Reserve

Balance at start of year 4,532 29,959

transfer (to)/from Accumulated surplus/(Deficit) 9,085 (25,427)

Balance at end of year  13,617 4,532

B) contRiButed capital
Balance at start of year 230,243 215,405

Capital contributions received from victorian Government  2,951  14,838 

Balance at end of year 233,194 230,243

c) accumulated suRplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year 42,121 8,537

net result for the year (22,023) 8,919

transfer (to)/from Restricted specific purpose Reserve (460) (763)

transfer (to)/from Internally Managed Reserve (9,085) 25,427

Balance at end of year 10,554 42,121

total equity at the end of the financial year 540,215 559,504

notes to the financial statements
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and cash flow reconciliation

note 22(a) cash and cash eQuivalents

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

Cash at Bank  11,245 12,666

Cash on Hand  31 30

total cash and cash equivalents  11,276 12,696

Represented by:

Cash for Health service operations (as per Cash Flow statement) 10,837 11,069

Cash held for residential patient monies held in trust 439 1,627

total cash and cash equivalents  11,276 12,696

Refer to note 17 for monies held in trust disclosure.

note 22(B) Reconciliation of net Result foR the yeaR to net cash infloW / 
(outfloW) fRom opeRating activities

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

net Result for the period (22,023) 8,919

non-cash movements:

Depreciation and Amortisation 43,324 40,948

Impairment of Available for sale Investments  -    205 

provision for Doubtful Debts  -   (20)

movements included in investing and financing activities:

loss / (Gain) on Revaluation of Investment property (530) (431)

loss / Gain on sale of AFs shares 1,217 (2,842)

loss / (Gain) on sale of property, plant & equipment (344) (219)

movements in assets and liabilities:

Increase / (Decrease) in employee Benefits 1,897 6,403

Increase / (Decrease) in trade Creditors 21,077 (5,513)

Decrease / (Increase) in patient Fees Receivable (2,116) 304

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories (612) 1

Increase / (Decrease) in Monies Held in trust 2,634 1,894

Increase / (Decrease) in other payables 403 1,170

Decrease / (Increase) in other Receivables (18,697) (10,110)

non-operating Cash Flows from Discontinued operations  -    1,924 

net cash inflow from operating activities 26,231 42,633
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note 23(a) financial RisK management 
oBJectives and policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods 
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and 
expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of 

financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument 
are disclosed in note 1 to the Financial statements.

Barwon Health’s main finanical risks include credit risk, 
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. 
the main purpose in holding financial instruments is 
to prudentially manage Barwon Health’s financial risks 
within the government policy parameters.

note 23(B) categoRisation of financial instRuments

consolidated 
2016 note

contractual 
financial 

assets - loans 
and Receivables 

$’000

available for 
sale financial 
assets at fair 

value 
$’000

contractual 
financial 

liabilities at 
amortised cost 

$’000
total 

$’000

financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 22  11,276  -    -    11,276 

Receivables  9  25,246  -    -    25,246 

Investments and other Financial Assets 10  17,955  13,142  -    31,097 

total financial assets  54,477  13,142  -    67,619 

financial liabilities

trade Creditors and other payables 16  -    -    37,115  37,115 

Refundable entrance Fees 17  -    -    9,951  9,951 

Residential patient Monies held in trust 17  -    -    788  788 

total financial liabilities  -    -    47,854  47,854 

consolidated 
2015 note

contractual 
financial 

assets - loans 
and Receivables 

$’000

available for 
sale financial 
assets at fair 

value 
$’000

contractual 
financial 

liabilities at 
amortised cost 

$’000
total 

$’000

financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 22 12,696  -    -   12,696

Receivables  9 13,013  -    -   13,013

Investments and other Financial Assets 10  46 36,925  -   36,971

total financial assets 25,755 36,925  -   62,680

financial liabilities

trade Creditors and other payables 16  -    -   21,161 21,161

Refundable entrance Fees 17  -    -   7,237 7,237

Residential patient Monies held in trust 17  -    -   868 868

total financial liabilities  -    -   29,266 29,266

the above carrying amounts exclude statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. Gst payable and receivable).

notes to the financial statements
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note 23(c) net holding gain / (loss) on financial instRuments By categoRy

consolidated 
2016 note

net holding 
gain / (loss) 

$’000

total interest 
income / 

(expense) 
$’000

fee income 
/ (expense) 

$’000

impairment 
loss 

$’000
total 

$’000

financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 22  -    593  -    -    593 

Receivables  9  -    -    -    (244)  (244)

Investments and other Financial Assets 10  (1,230)  2,215  (159)  -    826 

total financial assets  (1,230)  2,808  (159)  (244)  1,175 

financial liabilities

trade Creditors and other payables 16  -    -    -    -    -   

Refundable entrance Fees 17  -    -    -    -    -   

Residential patient Monies held in trust 17  -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Bearing liabilities 18  -    -    -    -    -   

total financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -   

consolidated 
2015 note

net holding 
gain / (loss) 

$’000

total interest 
income / 

(expense) 
$’000

fee income 
/ (expense) 

$’000

impairment 
loss 

$’000
total 

$’000

financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 22  -    473  -    -    473 

Receivables  9  -    -    -    (465)  (465)

Investments and other Financial Assets 10  2,842  3,375  (130)  (205)  5,881 

total financial assets  2,842  3,847  (130)  (670)  5,889 

financial liabilities

trade Creditors and other payables 16  -    -    -    -    -   

Refundable entrance Fees 17  -    -    -    -    -   

Residential patient Monies held in trust 17  -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Bearing liabilities 18  -    -    -    -    -   

total financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -   
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note 23(d) cRedit RisK

Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of 
Barwon Health, which comprise the assets listed in the 
table below.  the exposure to credit risk arises from the 
potential default of the counterparty on their contractual 
obligations resulting in financial loss to Barwon Health.  
Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a 
regular basis.  Credit risk associated with Barwon Health’s 
contractual financial assets is minimal because the main 
debtor is the victorian Government. For debtors other 
than the Government, it is Barwon Health’s policy to deal 
with entities with high credit ratings.  Barwon Health does 
not engage in hedging for its financial assets and Barwon 
Health’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit 
ratings.  except where otherwise detailed, the carrying 
amount of financial assets, net of any allowances for 
losses, represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

financial assets that are either past due or impaired:
Currently Barwon Health does not hold any collateral as 
security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its 
financial assets.  As at reporting date, other than for the 
doubtful debts disclosed in note 9, there is no event to 
indicate that any of the financial assets were impaired.  
there are no financial assets that have had their terms 
renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due 
or impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts 
as indicated.  the following table discloses the ageing of 
the financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

Table: Ageing analysis of Financial Assets as at 30 June

past due but not impaired

carrying 
amount 

$’000

not past 
due 

and not 
impaired 

$’000

less than 1 
month 

$’000
1-3 months 

$’000

3 months - 
1 year 
$’000

1-5 years 
$’000

over 5 
years 
$’000

impaired 
financial 

assets 
$’000

2016

financial assets

Cash and Cash 
equivalents

 11,276  11,276  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Receivables  25,246  16,723  4,090  3,545  1,279  -  -  390 

Investments 
and other 
financial Assets

 31,097  31,097  -  -  -  -  -  - 

total financial 
assets

 67,619  59,096  4,090  3,545  1,279  -    -  390 

2015

financial assets

Cash and Cash 
equivalents

12,696 12,696  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Receivables 13,013 8,936  2,125  1,873  446  -  -  367 

Investments 
and other 
financial Assets

 36,971  36,971  -  -  -  -  -  - 

total financial 
assets

62,680 58,603  2,125  1,873  446  -    -  367 

there are no material financial assets which are 
individually determined to be impaired. Currently Barwon 
Health does not hold any collateral as security nor credit 
enhancements relating to any of its financial assets. 

there are no financial assets that have had their terms 
renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due 
or impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts 
as indicated.

note 23: Financial instruments
notes to the financial statements

[continued]
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note 23(e) liQuidity RisK

liquidity risk arises when Barwon Health is unable to 
meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  It is Barwon 
Health’s policy to settle financial obligations within 
30 days.  It also continuously manages risk through 
monitoring future cash flows and maturity planning to 
ensure adequate holding of high quality liquid assets 
and dealing in highly liquid markets. Barwon Health’s 

exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based 
on prior periods data and current assessment of risk.  
Cash for unexpected events is generally sourced from 
liquidation of term deposits.  Maximum exposure to 
liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities.  

the following table discloses the contractual maturity 
analysis for Barwon Health’s financial liabilities.

Table: Maturity analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June

maturity dates

carrying 
amount 

$’000

contractual 
cash flows 

$’000

less than 1 
month 

$’000
1-3 months 

$’000

3 months - 1 
year 

$’000
1-5 years 

$’000
over 5 years 

$’000

2016

financial liabilities:

trade Creditors and 
other payables

 37,115  37,115 33,085 3,291  739  -  - 

Refundable entrance 
Fees

 9,951  9,951  454  162  9,335  -  - 

Residential patient 
Monies held in trust

 788  788  139  233  358  58 -

total financial 
liabilities

 47,854  47,854  33,678  3,686  10,432  58  - 

2015

financial liabilities:

trade Creditors and 
other payables

21,161 21,161  15,607  1,613  3,428  513  - 

Refundable entrance 
Fees

7,237 7,237  330  118  6,789  -  - 

Residential patient 
Monies held in trust

 868  868  152  257  395  64  - 

total financial 
liabilities

 29,266  29,266  16,088  1,988  10,612  577  - 
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note 23(f) maRKet RisK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices.  Market risk comprises 
foreign exchange risk (currency risk), interest rate risk and 
price risk.

currency Risk
Barwon Health is not exposed to significant foreign 
currency risk through its payables relating to purchases 
of supplies and consumables from overseas. this is 
because of a limited amount of purchases denominated 
in foreign currencies and a short timeframe between 
commitment and settlement.

interest Rate Risk
exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily 
through Barwon Health’s interest bearing liabilities.  
Minimisation of risk is achieved by holding a large 
amount of fixed rate or non-interest bearing 
financial instruments.

For financial liabilities, Barwon Health mainly undertake 
financial liabilities with fixed interest rates (i.e. for  
borrowings and finance leases) other than for refundable 
entrance fees where the interest rate risk is mitigated 
by holding these deposits in financial institutions with a 
variable rate.

price Risk
exposure to price risk arises from price movements 
from Barwon Health’s listed equity holdings.  these 
equities have been gifted to Barwon Health and are 
held for long term gain.  Barwon Health’s excess funds 
are predominantly invested in term deposits or bonds. 
price risk is managed by reviewing the prices of all these 
listed equity investments on an regular basis confirming 
the long term growth strategy for these investments.  
should the price risk be considered significant, 
management will determine the appropriate course 
of action whether that be to dispose of some or all of 
these investments.

Table: Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June

interest Rate exposure

Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest Rates 

(%)

 carrying 
amount 

$’000

fixed 
interest 

Rate 
$’000

variable 
interest 

Rate 
$’000

non 
interest 
Bearing 

$’000

2016

financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 2.25  11,276  -  11,276  - 

Receivables  -  25,246  -  -  25,246 

other Financial Assets - equities  -  1,127  -  -  1,127 

Investments 4.91  29,970  519  29,451  - 

total financial assets  67,619  519  40,727  26,373 

2015

financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 2.50 12,696  -  12,696  - 

Receivables  - 13,013  -  - 13,013

other Financial Assets - equities  - 2,455  -  - 2,455

Investments 5.19 34,516 2,095  32,421  - 

total financial assets 62,680 2,095  45,117 15,468

note 23: Financial instruments
notes to the financial statements

[continued]
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interest Rate exposure

Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest Rates 

(%)

 carrying 
amount 

$’000

fixed 
interest 

Rate 
$’000

variable 
interest 

Rate 
$’000

non 
interest 
Bearing 

$’000

2016

financial liabilities:

trade Creditors and other payables  -  37,115  -  -  37,115 

Refundable entrance Fees  -  9,951  -  -  9,951 

Residential patient Monies held in trust  -  788  -  -  788 

total financial liabilities  47,854  -    -    47,854 

2015

financial liabilities:

trade Creditors and other payables  -  21,161  -  -  21,161 

Refundable entrance Fees  - 7,237  -  -  7,237 

Residential patient Monies held in trust  - 868  -  -  868 

total financial liabilities 29,266  -    -   29,266

sensitivity disclosure analysis
Barwon Health has prepared a sensitivity analysis 
to illustrate the impacts on its financial position and 
financial results arising from a reasonably possible 
change in interest rates and equity prices.  Actual 
results in the future may differ due to the inherent 
uncertainty of global financial markets.  the sensitivity 
analysis is for illustrative purposes only, as in practice 
market rates rarely change in isolation, and are likely to 
be interdependent.

For interest rates, in the sensitivity analysis technique 
estimates the change based on an instantaneous 
increase or decrease in the floating interest rates to which 
Barwon Health is exposed, and has been determined 
based the exposure to interest rates at the reporting date, 
and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning 
of the financial year and being held constant throughout 
the reporting period.  For equity prices, the sensitivity 
analysis technique estimates the change based on 
an instantaneous increase or decrease in the value of 
instruments at the reporting date.

taking into account past performance, future 
expectations, economic forecasts, and management’s 
knowledge and experience of the financial markets, 
Barwon Health believes  the following movements are 
‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months:

 › A parallel shift of +0.25% ( 25 basis points) and –0.75% 
(75 basis points) in market interest rates

 › A parallel shift of +10% and -10% in market prices of 
listed equities
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note 23(f) maRKet RisK [continued]

the following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument 
held by Barwon Health at year end as presented to key management personnel, if changes in the relevant risk occur.

interest Rate Risk price Risk

-0.25% 0.75% -10% 10%

2016
carrying 
amount

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

financial assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

 11,276 (28) (28) 85 85  -    -    -    -   

Receivables   25,246  -  -  -  -  -    -    -    -   

other Financial Assets - 
equities

 1,127  -  -  -  -  -   (113)  -    113 

Investments  29,970 (75) (75) 225 225  -    -    -    -   

 67,619 (103) (103) 310  310  - (113)  -  113 

financial liabilities

trade Creditors and 
other payables

 37,115  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Refundable entrance 
Fees

 9,951  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Residential patient 
Monies held in trust

 788  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 47,854  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

total (103) (103) 310  310  - (113)  -  113 

interest Rate Risk price Risk

-0.25% 0.75% -10% 10%

2015
carrying 
amount

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

profit 
$’000

equity 
$’000

financial assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

12,696 (32) (32) 95 95  -  -  -  - 

Receivables  13,013  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

other Financial Assets - 
equities

2,455  -  -  -  -  - (246)  - 246

Investments 34,516 (86) (86) 259 259  -  -  -  - 

62,680 (118) (118) 354  354  - (246)  -  246 

financial liabilities

trade Creditors and 
other payables

 21,161  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Refundable entrance 
Fees

7,237  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Residential patient 
Monies held in trust

868  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

29,266  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

total (118) (118) 354 354  - (246)  - 246

note 23: Financial instruments
notes to the financial statements

[continued]
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note 23(g) faiR value

the fair values and net fair values of financial instrument 
assets and liabilities are measured as the fair value of 
financial instrument assets and liabilities with standard 
terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets 
are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

Barwon Health considers that the carrying amount of 
financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in 
the financial statements to be a fair approximation of 
their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the 
financial instruments and the expectation that they will 
be paid in full.

the following table provides an analysis of financial 
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 

recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based 
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

 › level 1 - the fair value of financial instruments with 
standard terms and conditions and traded in active 
liquid markets are determined with reference to 
quoted market prices.

 › level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs 
other than quoted prices that are observable for the 
finanical asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

 › level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance 
with generally accepted pricing models based on 
discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable 
market inputs.

hierarchy

2016

 carrying 
amount 

$’000
level 1 
$’000

level 2 
$’000

level 3 
$’000

total 
$’000

available for sale financial assets (at fair value)

Fixed Bonds and Floating Rate notes  12,015  12,015  -    -    12,015 

equities  1,127  1,127  -    -    1,127 

 13,142  13,142  -    -    13,142 

hierarchy

2015

 carrying 
amount 

$’000
level 1 
$’000

level 2 
$’000

level 3 
$’000

total 
$’000

available for sale financial assets (at fair value)

Fixed Bonds and Floating Rate notes  34,470 34,470  -  -  34,470 

equities  2,455 2,455  -  -  2,455 

 36,925  36,925  -  -  36,925 

fixed Bonds and floating Rate notes
In the absense of an active market, the fair value of 
fixed bonds and floating rate notes are valued using 
observable inputs such as recently executed transaction 
prices in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers and 
yield curves.

equities
All equities are listed share assets and measured at fair 
value with reference to quoted (unadjusted) market 
prices from active markets. Barwon Health recognises 
these instruments as level 1.
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name of entity principle activity

ownership interest 
2016 

%

ownership interest 
2015 

%

south west Alliance of Rural Health (vic) Information 
systems

24% 24%

the south west Alliance of Rural Health (swARH) is an alliance of public health agencies covering 33 physical sites 
in the south west of victoria. swARH connects all public acute hospitals and assocated health services in the 
region through the delivery of Information technology services. this enables each of the public acute hospitals and 
associated health services within the region to improve service delivery and gain returns on investment not possible 
on their own. Barwon Health is party to this unincorporated arrangement, and therefore treats the arrangement as 
a Joint operation, taking a share of the operations to account. swARH’s principal place of business is Ryot street, 
warrnambool victoria, Australia. swARH has not been audited for the year ended 30 June 2016 as at the date of signing 
these financial statements.

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

current assets 

Cash and Cash equivalents  492  476 

Inventories  17  8 

Receivables  3,519  452 

prepayments  68  -   

total current assets  4,096 936

non current assets 

property, plant and equipment 23  20 

leased assets 1,703  3,779 

Intangible Assets 30  38 

total non current assets  1,756 3,837

total assets  5,852 4,773

current liabilities

payables 3,516 2,069

Current lease liabilities 721 729

employee Benefits and Related on-Cost provisions 424 383

total current liabilities  4,661 3,181

non current liabilities

employee Benefits and Related on-Cost provisions 83 95

non-Current lease liabilities 982 1,374

total non current liabilities  1,065  1,469 

total liabilities  5,726 4,650

net assets  126 123

equity  126 123

note 24: Jointly controlled  
operations and assets

notes to the financial statements
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Barwon Health’s interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is 
detailed below:

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

Revenues

operating Revenue 5,291 4,862

total Revenue  5,291 4,862

expenses

operating expenses (4,383) (3,309)

total expenses (4,383) (3,309)

net Result Before capital and specific items  909 1,552

Finance lease Charges (98) (109)

Depreciation (809)  (1,441)

net Result 2 2
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consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

(a) capital commitments undeR contRact
Building projects 60,255 32,921

equipment upgrades 5,431 5,811

 65,686 38,732

not later than one year 51,924 37,633

later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 13,762 1,100

total  65,686 38,733

(B) opeRating leases 
equipment

- not later than one year 857 1,610

- later than one year and not later than 5 years 548 857

 1,405 2,467

there are 2 MRI systems and 63 photocopiers on non-cancellable operating 
leases.

Motor vehicles

- not later than one year 146 95

- later than one year and not later than 5 years 81 25

 227 120

there are 27 Motor vehicles on non-cancellable operating leases.

property

- not later than one year 416 533

- later than one year and not later than 5 years 303 196

 719 729

there are 15 properties on non-cancellable operating leases.

(c) commitments fRom sWaRh Joint ventuRe
Maintenance and Agreement obligations

 - not later than one year 3,862 4,145

 - later than one year and not later than 5 years 16,438 17,641

20,300 21,786

the service agreements provide support for communication networks and 
are non-cancellable.

All amounts are shown inclusive of Gst.

total commitments for expenditure (inclusive of Gst)  88,337 63,833

less Gst recoverable from the Australian tax office  8,031 5,803

total commitments for expenditure (exclusive of gst)  80,306 58,030

notes to the financial statements
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and contingent assets

note 27: operating segments

there are no known material contingent assets or contingent liabilities for Barwon Health. (2015: nil)

2016 
consolidated

hospital 
$’000

Racs 
$’000

linen 
$’000

community 
and mental 

health 
$’000

other 
$’000

total 
$’000

Revenue

external segment 
Revenue 

 470,587  37,494  396  69,700  76,659  654,835 

total Revenue  470,587  37,494  396  69,700  76,659  654,835 

expenses

external segment 
expenses

 528,072  55,800  365  69,859  26,162  680,258 

total  expenses  528,072  55,800  365  69,859  26,162  680,258 

net Result from ordinary 
Activities

 (57,485)  (18,306)  31  (159)  50,496  (25,423)

Interest expense  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  1,717  617  -    488  211  3,033 

net Result for year  (55,768)  (17,689)  31  329  50,707  (22,390)

otheR infoRmation 

segment Assets 404,196 145,349  -   114,932 49,664 714,141

total assets 404,196 145,349  -   114,932 49,664 714,141

segment liabilities  110,696  22,357  -  31,288  9,585 173,926

total liabilities 110,696 22,357  -   31,288 9,585 173,926

Acquisition of property, 
plant and equipment 
and intangible assets 

23,090 8,303  -   6,565 2,837 40,795

Depreciation and 
Amortisation expense

34,985 3,703  -   4,636  -   43,324

non cash expenses other 
than depreciation

159 17  -   21 8 205
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2015 
consolidated

hospital 
$’000

Racs 
$’000

linen 
$’000

community 
and mental 

health 
$’000

other 
$’000

total 
$’000

Revenue

external segment 
Revenue 

 437,058  50,454  14  53,118  94,623  635,267 

total Revenue  437,058  50,454  14  53,118  94,623  635,267 

expenses

external segment 
expenses

 476,265  52,655  1,442  65,577  36,939  632,878 

total  expenses  476,265  52,655  1,442  65,577  36,939  632,878 

net Result from ordinary 
Activities

 (39,207)  (2,201)  (1,428)  (12,459)  57,684  2,389 

Interest expense  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  3,696  1,329  -    1,051  454  6,530 

net Result for year  (35,511)  (872)  (1,428)  (11,408)  58,138  8,919 

otheR infoRmation 

segment Assets  400,383  143,978  -    113,848  49,195  707,404 

total assets  400,383  143,978  -    113,848  49,195  707,404 

segment liabilities  94,132  19,012  -  26,606 8,151  147,901 

total liabilities  94,132  19,012  -  26,606  8,151  147,901 

Acquisition of property, 
plant and equipment 
and intangible assets 

59,935 21,553  -   17,042 7,364  105,894 

Depreciation and 
Amortisation expense

32,480 3,550  -   4,138 780  40,948 

non cash expenses other 
than depreciation

433 48  -   60 34  575 

the major products and services from which the above segments derive revenue are: 

Business segments
 › Hospital – Acute and sub Acute health services

 › Residential and Aged Care services (RACs) – Health services for the Aged in a residential facility

 › linen service – provision of linen delivery services [internal and external]

 › Community and Mental Health – provision of community based health and mental health services

 › other – All other services and activities

geographical segments
 › services are provided in the Barwon region of victoria.

note 27: operating segments
notes to the financial statements

[continued]
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In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 
1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

note 28(a)

period

Responsible ministers

the Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing, Minister 
for Mental Health

1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

the Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health and Ambulance services 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

governing Board

Dr John stekelenburg* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Dr sarah leach 1/07/2015 - 11/09/2015

Dr David Mackay* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Mr Marcus Dripps* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Ms Barbara Dennis* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Mrs Marie thornton* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Ms Jennifer Cromarty* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

Ms Robyn Davis* 29/01/2016 - 30/06/2016

Ms virginia todd* 1/07/2015 - 30/06/2016

* Board members who are in office as at date of signing the Financial Report

accountable officers

professor David Ashbridge 1/07/2015 - 16/01/2016

Mr paul Cohen 17/01/2016 - 24/06/2016

accountable officers commencing after 30 June 2016

professor Belinda Moyes 4/07/2016 - Current

note 28(B) RemuneRation foR ResponsiBle peRsons

the number of Responsible persons are shown in their relevant income bands:

salary Range  $ 2016 no. 2015 no.

0 - 9,999 2 -

10,000 - 19,999 - -

20,000 - 29,999 6 8

40,000 - 49,999 1 1

320,000 - 329,999 1 -

350,000 - 359,999 1 -

460,000 - 469,999 - 1

total numbers 11 10

income received or due and receivable by Responsible 
persons from Barwon health amounted to:

$879,391 $687,763

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of premier 
and Cabinet.

note 28: Responsible persons – disclosures
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note 28(c)   otheR tRansactions 
of ResponsiBle peRsons and theiR 
Related paRties

professor David Ashbridge and Mr paul Cohen were 
both an executive member of the swARH Regional ICt 
Joint Arrangement during the reporting period. total 
payments made to swARH for the financial year were 
$3,049,927 (2015, $7,361,299) and total payments received 
from swARH for the financial year were $2,173,086 (2015, 
$150,000).  professor Ashbridge is also a Director of 
Deakin university which provide services to and receive 
services from Barwon Health.  total payments made to 
Deakin university until professor Ashbridge’s resignation 
were $495,441 (2015, $2,468,067), and total receipts were 
$5,475,960 (2015, $5,405,952).  

Ms Jennifer Cromarty is a board member of Anam Cara. 
Barwon Health is currently undertaking a short-term 
contract with Anam Cara House with regards to strategic 
planning. total payments made to Anam Cara House for 
the financial year were $1,334 (2015, $3,408).

note 28(d)   executive 
officeRs disclosuRe

the number of executive officers, other than Ministers 
and Accountable officers, and their total remuneration 
during the reporting year are shown within the following 
income bands.  Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus 
payments, long service leave payments, redundancy 
payments and retirement benefits.

salary Range  $ total Remuneration Base Remuneration

2016 no. 2015 no. 2016 no. 2015 no.

less than - 99,999 1 - 1 -

120,000 - 129,999 - - 1 -

130,000 - 139,999 1 - - -

140,000 - 149,999 1 - 1 -

160,000 - 169,999 2 - 2 -

170,000 - 179,999 1 - 1 -

180,000 - 189,999 - - - 1

200,000 - 209,999 - 1 - -

210,000 - 219,999 - 1 1 2

220,000 - 229,999 1 1 1 4

230,000 - 239,999 - 3 1 1

240,000 - 249,999 2 1 - -

250,000 - 259,999 - - - 1

260,000 - 269,999 - 1 1 1

270,000 - 279,999 1 1 - -

280,000 - 289,999 - 1 - -

330,000 - 339,999 - 1 - 1

350,000 - 359,999 1 - 1 -

total number 11 11 11 11

total Remuneration $2,178,141 $2,752,200 $2,090,679 $2,586,939

note 28: Responsible persons – disclosures
notes to the financial statements

[continued]
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note 30: Discontinued operations

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

victorian auditor-general's office

Audit of Financial statements 177 170

total 177 170

consol’d 
2016 

$’000

consol’d 
2015 

$’000

linencare

on 30 June 2015, Barwon Health announced its intention to exit the laundry operations of the linenCare business 
and initiated an active program to wind down operations. the associated assets and liabilities were consequently 
presented as held for sale in the financial statements. It is therefore being reported as a discontinued operation. the 
financial information relating to the discontinued operation for the period to the date of disposal is set out below.

(a) net Result fRom discontinued opeRations:
Revenues from ordinary activities  -   3,175

expenses form ordinary activities  -   (4,751)

net Result  -   (1,576)

Gain/(loss) on re-measurement to fair value less costs to sell  -    -   

net result from discontinued operations  -   (1,576)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  -   (933)

Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities  -    -   

Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities  -    -   

total cash inflow/(outflow)  -   (933)

(B) caRRying amounts of assets and liaBilities (maJoR classes) compRising 
the opeRations classified as held foR sale at Balance date
assets

property, plant and equipment 193 439

trade receivables  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -   

Inventories  -    -   

total assets 193 439

liabilities

trade creditors  -    -   

provision for employee benefits  -    -   

total liabilities  -    -   

net assets held for sale 193 439
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on 4 July 2016, professor Belinda Moyes commenced as 
Chief executive officer of Barwon Health.

note 32: Controlled entities

name of entity country of incorporation equity holding

the trustee for Barwon Health Foundation Future Fund Australia n/a

Barwon Health Foundation Future Fund limited Australia limited by Guarantee

controlled entities contribution to the consolidated Results 
net Result for the year

2016 
$’000

2015 
$’000

the trustee for Barwon Health Foundation Future Fund  -    -   

Barwon Health Foundation Future Fund limited 1,959  -   

note 33: economic dependency

the financial performance and position of Barwon Health 
has declined since the prior year, with the health service 
reporting a deficit net result before capital and specific 
items of $10,836,892 (2015: $1,328,115 surplus), a net 
current liability position of $68,200,594 (2015: $77,425,647), 
resulting in a current asset ratio of 0.56 (2015: 0.40) and a 
(continued) cash outflow from operations (before capital 
cash flows) of $8,820,960 (2015: $8,477,276).

As a result of the financial performance and position, 
Barwon Health has obtained a letter of support from 
the state Government and in particular, the Department 
of Health and Human services (DHHs), confirming that 
the department will continue to provide Barwon Health 
adequate cash flow to meet its current and future 
obligations up to september 2017. on that basis, the 
financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis.

note 31: events occurring after reporting date
notes to the financial statements
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executive and Chief Financial officer Declaration

the attached financial statements for Barwon Health 
have been prepared in accordance with standing 
Directions 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, 
applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian 
Accounting standards including Interpretations, and 
other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

we further state that, in our opinion, the information 
set out in the comprehensive operating statement, 
balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow 
statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly the 
financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 
2016 and the financial position of Barwon Health at 30 
June 2016.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any 
circumstance which would render any particulars 
included in the financial statements to be misleading 
or inaccurate.

we authorise the attached Financial statements for issue 
on this day. 

dr John stekelenburg 
Chairperson

professor Belinda moyes 
Chief executive officer

mr colin holland 
Interim Chief Financial officer

Geelong  
10 August 2016
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102 Glossary of terms

a
aasB 
the Australian Accounting  
standards Board

aass 
Australian Accounting standards

ahca 
Australian Health Care Agreement

B
Best practice 
the way leading edge organisations 
deliver world class performance

BsWRics 
Barwon south western Regional 
Integrated Cancer service

c 
ceo 
Chief executive officer

cso 
the community service obligation

d
dva 
Department of veterans Affairs

e
ed 
emergency Department

f
fRd 
Financial Reporting Directions

fte 
Full time equivalent

g
gceid 
Geelong Centre for emerging 
Infectious Diseases

gem 
Geriatric evaluation and 
Management

gp 
General practitioner

h
hacc 
Home and Community Care

hith 
Hospital in the Home

i
icu 
Intensive Care unit

is 
Information services

it 
Information technology 

K
Kpi 
Key performance Indicator

m
mh 
Mental Health

mRi  
Magnetic Resonance Imaging

o
oh&s 
occupational Health and safety 

R
Rac incl. mental health 
Residential Aged Care including 
Mental Health

Racs 
Residential Aged Care service 

s
saB 
staphylococcus aureus bacteraemia

separation 
process by which a patient is 
discharged from care

standard  
A statement of a level of 
performance to be achieved

sWaRh 
south west Alliance of Rural Health

t
tac 
transport Accident Commission

v
vgv 
the valuer-General victoria

W
Wies 
weighted Inlier equivalent 
separations; allocated resource 
weight for a patient’s episode of care. 
A formula is applied to the resource 
weight to determine the wIes for 
recovery of funding.
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InDeX

Index

a
aboriginal 21, 22

access performance 30

accreditation 29 

acute care 07, 28

aged care 03, 07, 10, 13, 27, 29, 31, 43, 
45, 50, 53, 57, 59, 94

alan david lodge 07

allied health 11, 53,

ambulatory 32, 52

award 11

B
Barwon health foundation 10, 43, 98

Barwon health locations 104

Blakiston lodge 07

Board committees 08-09

Board of directors 08, 10

c
carers 15, 19, 22

chief executive 02-04, 09, 10, 13, 17, 
98, 99 

community health 09, 10, 32, 53

complaints 23

critical care 30

d
deakin university 03, 07, 09, 13, 25, 
96

dental 03, 28, 52, 53

disclosure index 34-35

e
education 03, 06, 07, 20, 21, 22, 23, 25, 
26, 53 

elective surgery 02, 03, 30

emergency department 03, 30, 53

events 04, 12, 29, 98

executive team 09

f
financials 04, 12, 33-99

foundation  
see Barwon Health Foundation

fundraising 04, 43

i
infectious disease 03, 12

intensive care unit (icu) 29, 30

m
maternity 04, 29

mental health 02, 06, 07, 09, 10, 13, 
21, 23, 24, 29, 32, 52, 53, 57, 59, 60, 93, 
94, 95

minister 06, 16, 17, 19, 41, 95

mission Inside front cover

 
n
number of beds 07

o
occupational health & safety  
15, 16, 17, 23 

organisational structure 10

p
palliative care 22, 31, 52, 53

percy Baxter lodge 07

pharmacy 04, 62 

priorities 19-32

R
Research 03, 06, 25, 62 

Risk management 08, 17, 20, 82

s
service performance 19-32

staffcare 15

statement of priorities 19-32

strategic plan 02, 06, 15, 

surgical 27, 28, 29, 48, 64 

surplus 12, 38, 39, 49, 80, 98 

t
transition care 31

the gordon 07

v
values Inside front cover, 03, 06, 22, 
23, 89 

vision Inside front cover, 06

volunteers 03, 19, 20 

W
Wallace lodge 07

Wies 30, 31

Workforce information 11 
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univeRsity hospital geelong

Bellerine Street, Geelong  
t 03 4215 0000

coRio community health centRe

Gellibrand Street, Corio 
t 03 4215 7100

Belmont community health centRe

1-17 Reynolds Road, Belmont 
t 03 4215 6800

toRQuay community health centRe

100 Surfcoast Highway, torquay 
t 03 4215 7800

mcKellaR centRe

45-95 Ballarat Road, North Geelong 
t 03 4215 5200

neWcomB community health centRe

104-108 Bellerine Highway, Newcomb 
t 03 4215 7520

anglesea community health centRe

McMillan Street, Anglesea 
t 03 4215 6700

Please note: this is not a complete listing  
of Barwon Health sites.

Barwon Health locations
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